

Disaster and Debris Management Services

Request for Proposals # AD-18-03

| General Information | | | | |
|----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|--|--|
| Project Timeline | This contract shall be for an initial | See Section 1.24 | | |
| | three year period with two additional | | | |
| | three-year renewal terms. | | | |
| Evaluation of Proposals | Evaluation Committee | See Section 1.26 | | |
| Question Due Date | May 7, 2018 | See Section 1.27 | | |
| Proposals will be accepted until | 2:00 p.m. on May 15, 2018 | See Section 1.27 | | |
| Proof of Bonding Capacity | \$1,000,000 or 100% of the Contract | See Section 1.25 | | |
| Payment and Performance Bonds | \$1,000,000 or 100% of the Contract | See Section 4.1 | | |

THE CITY OF PEMBROKE PINES
PURCHASING DIVISION
8300 SOUTH PALM DRIVE
PEMBROKE PINES, FLORIDA 33025
(954) 518-9020

Table of Contents

| SECTION 1 | 1 - INSTRUCTIONS | 7 |
|-----------------|--|-----|
| 1.1 N | NOTICE | 7 |
| 1.2 P | URPOSE | 7 |
| 1.3 S | COPE OF SERVICES | 8 |
| 1.3.1 | EMERGENCY ROAD CLEARANCE | 9 |
| 1.3.2 | ROW VEGETATIVE DEBRIS REMOVAL | 9 |
| 1.3.3 | ROW C&D DEBRIS REMOVAL | 10 |
| 1.3.4 | REMOVAL OF DEBRIS FROM CITY PARKS AND FACILITIES | 11 |
| 1.3.5 | REMOVAL OF DEBRIS FROM CANALS/WATERWAYS | 11 |
| 1.3.6 GRIND | TDMS(S) MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS AND REDUCTION THROUGH | |
| 1.3.7 SITE | HAUL-OUT OF REDUCED DEBRIS TO CITY APPROVED FINAL DISPOS 13 | SAL |
| 1.3.8 | REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS LEANING TREES AND HANGING LIMBS | 14 |
| 1.3.9 | REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS STUMPS | 15 |
| 1.3.10 | ROW WHITE GOODS DEBRIS REMOVAL | 16 |
| 1.3.11 | HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE (HHW) REMOVAL, TRANSPORT, | 17 |
| | DISPOSAL | |
| | E-WASTE REMOVAL | |
| 1.3.13 | ABANDONED VEHICLE REMOVAL | |
| 1.3.14 | DEAD ANIMAL CARCASSES | _ |
| 1.3.15 | OTHER DEBRIS REMOVAL WORK | |
| 1.3.16 | EVENT COORDINATION | |
| 1.3.17 | PRE-EVENT COORDINATION MEETING | |
| 1.3.18 | DESCRIPTION OF DESIGNATED AREAS | 19 |
| 1.3.19 SITES | TEMPORARY DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SITES AND FINAL DISPOSAL 21 | |
| 1.4 T | ECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS | 24 |
| 1.4.1 | TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE | 24 |
| 1.4.2 | NOTICE TO PROCEED | 24 |
| 1.4.3 | CHANGES IN SCOPE OF WORK | 24 |
| 1.4.4 | SAFETY | 24 |
| 1.4.5 | ON-SITE PROJECT MANAGER | |

| 1.5 | SUPERINTENDENT SHALL BE SUPPLIED BY THE CONTRACTOR | 24 |
|-------|---|------|
| 1.6 | EQUIPMENT | 25 |
| 1.7 | TRAFFIC CONTROL | 26 |
| 1.8 | RAPID RESPONSE CREW | 26 |
| 1.9 | HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE | 26 |
| 1.10 | WORK HOURS | 27 |
| 1.11 | TIME OF COMPLETION | 27 |
| 1.12 | LIQUIDATED DAMAGES | 27 |
| 1.13 | DAMAGES | 28 |
| 1.14 | EXISTING UTILITIES | 29 |
| 1.15 | OWNERSHIP OF DEBRIS | 29 |
| 1.16 | ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION | 30 |
| 1.17 | DOCUMENTATION AND MEASUREMENT | 31 |
| 1.18 | PAYMENT | 33 |
| 1.19 | FHWA-ER PROGRAM AND 2 CFR PART 200 CONTRACT REQUIREMENT | S 34 |
| 1.20 | TIME AND MATERIAL CONTRACTS IF REQUIRED | 35 |
| 1.21 | CHANGE ORDERS | 35 |
| 1.22 | FINAL PROJECT CLOSE OUT | 36 |
| 1.23 | DISTRIBUTION OF WORK | 37 |
| 1.24 | CONTRACT TERM | 37 |
| 1.25 | PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS | 37 |
| Title | e Page: | 37 |
| Tab | 1 - Table of Contents: | 37 |
| Tab | 2 - Letter of Interest: | 38 |
| Tab | 3 - Qualifications and Experience (25 points): | 38 |
| Tab | 4 - Ability (25 points): | 39 |
| Tab | 5 - Project Understanding and Technical Approach (20 points): | 41 |
| Tab | 6 – Project Cost (30 points): | 42 |
| Tab | 7 – Exceptions: | 42 |
| Tab | 8 – Other Completed Documents: | 42 |
| Tab | 9 - Additional Information: | 43 |
| 1.26 | EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS & PROCESS OF SELECTION | 43 |
| 1.27 | TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS | 44 |
| 1.28 | SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS | 44 |

| SECTION | N 2 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS | 45 |
|---------|---|----|
| 2.1 | REQUIRED INSURANCE | 46 |
| 2.2 | REQUIRED ENDORSEMENTS | 48 |
| SECTION | N 3 - GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS | 49 |
| 3.1 | EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS | 49 |
| 3.2 | CONFLICT OF INSTRUCTIONS | 49 |
| 3.3 | ADDENDA or ADDENDUM | 49 |
| 3.4 | INTERPRETATIONS AND QUESTIONS | 49 |
| 3.5 | RULES, REGULATIONS, LAWS, ORDINANCES and LICENSES | 49 |
| 3.6 | WARRANTIES FOR USAGE | 50 |
| 3.7 | BRAND NAMES | 50 |
| 3.8 | QUALITY | 50 |
| 3.9 | SAMPLES | 50 |
| 3.10 | DEVELOPMENT COSTS | 50 |
| 3.11 | PRICING | 50 |
| 3.12 | DELIVERY POINT | 50 |
| 3.13 | TAX EXEMPT STATUS | 50 |
| 3.14 | CONTRACT TIME | 50 |
| 3.15 | COPYRIGHT OR PATENT RIGHTS | 51 |
| 3.16 | PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES | 51 |
| 3.17 | CONFLICT OF INTEREST | 51 |
| 3.18 | FACILITIES | 51 |
| 3.19 | ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS | 51 |
| 3.20 | SIGNATURE REQUIRED | 52 |
| 3.21 | MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATION | 52 |
| 3.22 | MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL | 52 |
| 3.23 | PUBLIC BID; BID OPENING AND GENERAL EXEMPTIONS | 52 |
| 3.24 | RESERVATIONS FOR REJECTION AND AWARD | 53 |
| 3.25 | BID PROTEST | 53 |
| 3.26 | INDEMNIFICATION | 53 |
| 3.27 | DEFAULT PROVISION | 53 |
| 3.28 | ACCEPTANCE OF MATERIAL | 54 |
| 3.29 | LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROMPT PAYMENT ACT | 54 |
| SECTION | N 4 - SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS | 55 |

| 4.1 | PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS | 55 |
|-----------|---|----|
| 4.2 | DAVIS-BACON & RELATED ACTS | 56 |
| 4.3 | MINORITY / WOMEN'S / LABOR SURPLUS FIRMS PARTICIPATION | 56 |
| 4.4 | SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LIST | 56 |
| 4.5 | E-VERIFY | 57 |
| 4.6 | LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS | 57 |
| A. ANI | ACCESS BY THE GRANTEE, SUBGRANTEE, FEDERAL GRANTOR AGE COMPTROLLER GENERAL | |
| B. | FEDERAL CLEAN AIR AND WATER ACTS | 57 |
| C. | CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS | 57 |
| D. | COMPLIANCE WITH THE COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT | 57 |
| E. | BUY AMERICAN ACT | 58 |
| F. | SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT | 58 |
| G. | ANTI-LOBBYING | 58 |
| H. | EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY | 59 |
| | OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (OSHA) | |
| J. | ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA) | 59 |
| K. | EQUAL OPPORTUNITY | 59 |
| L. | BROWARD COUNTY CODE OF ETHICS FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS | |
| M. | FLORIDA BUILDING CODE (FBC). | 59 |
| N. | VIOLATION OF LAW | 60 |
| TTACH | HMENTS | |
| A 44 | demand A. Contact Information Forms | |

A

Attachment A: Contact Information Form

Attachment B: Vendor Information Form and a W-9

Attachment C: Non-Collusive Affidavit

Attachment D: Sworn Statement on Public Entity Crimes Form

Attachment E: Vendor Drug-Free Workplace Certification Form

Attachment F: Homeland Security's E-Verify System Affirmation Statement

Attachment G: Equal Benefits Certification Form

Attachment H: Proposer's Completed Qualification Statement

Attachment I: Sample Insurance Certificate

Attachment J: Specimen Contract/Agreement

Attachment K: References Form

Attachment L: Temporary Debris Management Sites (TDMS) and Work Zones

Attachment M: Certification Regarding Lobbying, Debarment, Suspension, Etc.

Standard Form LLL: Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying

Exhibit A - 2 CFR 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

Exhibit B - FHWA 1273 - Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts

SECTION 1 - INSTRUCTIONS

1.1 NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the City Commission of the City of Pembroke Pines is seeking sealed proposals for:

RFP # AD-18-03 Disaster and Debris Management Services

Solicitations may be obtained from the City of Pembroke Pines website at http://www.ppines.com/index.aspx?NID=667 and on the www.BidSync.com website.

If you have any problems downloading the solicitation, please contact the BidSync Support line at 1-800-990-9339.

If additional information help is needed with downloading the solicitation package please contact the Purchasing Office at (954) 518-9020 or by email at purchasing@ppines.com. The Purchasing Office hours are between 7:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m. on Monday through Thursday and is located at 8300 South Palm Drive, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33025.

The City requires all questions relating to the solicitation be entered through the "Ask a Question" option tab available on the BidSync website. Responses to the questions will be provided online at www.bidsync.com. Such request must be received by the "Question Due Date" stated in the solicitation. The issuance of a response via BidSync is considered an Addendum and shall be the only official method whereby such an interpretation or clarification will be made.

Proposals will be accepted until 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 15, 2018. Proposals must be **submitted electronically at <u>www.BidSync.com</u>**. The sealed electronic proposals will be publicly opened at 2:30 p.m. by the City Clerk's Office, in the City Hall Administration Building, 4th Floor Conference Room located at 601 City Center Way, Pembroke Pines, Florida, 33025.

1.2 PURPOSE

The City of Pembroke Pines is seeking proposals from qualified firms, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, to provide services to remove, process, and lawfully dispose of disaster generated debris on public property and public rights-of-way in the City of Pembroke Pines, Florida in response to an emergency event such as, but not limited to, hurricane(s) or other natural or manmade disaster(s). The City is seeking proposals from highly qualified Contractors with experience in the specialized management of disaster response labor for the removal of debris along with the preparation, response, recovery, and mitigation phases of any emergency or disaster. Contractors must have the capability and ability to rapidly respond to wide scale debris volumes typically produced in hurricanes, tornadoes, and other disaster types as well as small



scale debris volumes. It is the intent of the City to award contracts to two or more Contractors for these services in order to insure adequate resources at the time of an event.

The Contractor must handle debris management activities in the City of Pembroke Pines, Florida in accordance with applicable regulations of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Florida Department of Health (FDH), Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS), South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD), and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) in conjunction with the City's needs. The Contractor shall have an excellent understanding of the documentation involved for the reimbursement from FEMA, FHWA, or Other Federal Agencies, and the State relief programs to make the process of cost recovery efficient and accurate. The processes and documentation required will be in strict compliance with FEMA, FHWA, or Other Federal Agencies, and other State relief programs regulations regarding edibility.

Contracts must meet rules for Federal grants, as provided for in Title 2, C.F.R. § 200, for contracts awarded by non-Federal Entities under Federal Awards in order to be eligible for reimbursement under the Public Assistance Program. This proposal is solicited in accordance with the Procurement Requirements as shown in Title 2 C.F.R. § 200 as detailed in **EXHIBIT A** to this document and shall apply to all contracts issued pursuant to this Request for Proposal. Contractors shall be required to follow all of the requirements of 2 C.F.R. §200.321 in the execution of this Contract, and shall require and enforce similar compliance with all subcontractors.

NOTE: This solicitation is not a request for Emergency Debris Monitoring Services. The City maintains contract(s) with Contractor(s) to provide that service; and reviews those services through a separate procurement process. This RFP is specifically for Emergency Debris Removal Services. Contractors shall not include proposals that include Debris Monitoring Services. One or more Contractor(s) may be selected to provide differing elements or levels of scope of work in accordance with the capabilities and extent of involvement each respondent proposes. Contracts issued resulting from this RFP shall only be activated in the event of a declared emergency. There is no guarantee any contract resulting from the RFP will be activated or any work will be performed.

1.3 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The awarded contractor(s) shall be capable of assembling, directing and having the capacity to manage a major workforce, with multiple subcontractors, that can be fully operational in debris management operations and to cover the expenses of a major recovery prior to being paid by the City. Established management teams must be in place. The Contractor(s) shall have the resources to provide the equipment and personnel necessary to cover a major disaster.

The awarded contractor shall be knowledgeable of, and comply with, all applicable rules, regulations, policies, and guidelines of FEMA, FHWA, NCRS, and any other applicable federal, state, and local agencies at the time of the debris-generating event.

Contractor shall follow all of the requirements of 2 C.F.R. §200.321 in the execution of this Contract, and shall require and enforce similar compliance with all sub-contractors for contracts awarded by non-Federal Entities under Federal Awards which are incorporated herein by reference as if enumerated herein in their entirety.

Under this contract, work shall consist of coordinating and mobilizing an appropriate number of cleanup crews, as determined by the City's Debris Manager. Work shall also include the clearing and removing of any and all "eligible" debris as most currently defined (at the time Notice to Proceed is issued and executed by the City for the Contractor) by the Public Assistance grant program guidelines, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance Program Policy Guide (PAPPG), all applicable state and federal Disaster Specific Guidance (DSG) documents, FEMA fact sheets and policies and as directed by the City Debris Manager. Eligible also includes meeting any changes in definition, rules or requirements regarding debris removal reimbursement as stipulated by FEMA during the course of a debris removal project. The aforementioned definition of "eligible" applies to all uses throughout Scope of Work. Work will include: 1) examining debris to determine whether or not debris is eligible; 2) loading the debris; 3) hauling debris to City approved Temporary Debris Management Site / Reduction Site or a City approved Final Disposal Site(s); 4) reducing disaster related debris; 5) hauling reduced debris to a City approved Final Disposal Site; and 6) disposing of reduced debris at a City approved Final Disposal Site. Debris not defined as eligible by FEMA PAPPG, state or federal DSGs or policies will not be loaded, hauled or dumped under this contract unless written instructions are given to the Contractor by the City Debris Manager. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to load, transport, reduce and properly dispose of any and all disaster generated debris which is the result of the event under which the Contractor was issued Notice to Proceed, unless otherwise directed by the City Debris Manager in writing.

1.3.1 EMERGENCY ROAD CLEARANCE

At the request of the City for this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel and associated costs necessary to clear and remove debris from City roadways, to make them passable immediately following a declared disaster event. All roadways designated by the City Debris Manager shall be clear and passable within seventy (70) working hours of the issuance of Notice to Proceed from the City to conduct emergency roadway clearance work. The City may choose to extend the Contractor's seventy (70) hour limit through a written request. This may include roadways under the jurisdiction of other governmental agencies under the legal responsibility of the City. Clearance of these roadways will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager. The Contractor shall assist the City and its representatives in ensuring proper documentation of emergency road clearance activities by documenting the type of equipment and/or labor utilized (i.e., certification), starting and ending times, and zones/areas worked.

1.3.2 ROW VEGETATIVE DEBRIS REMOVAL

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to pick up and transport eligible disaster-related

vegetative debris existing on the City ROW to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations.

- a. For the purposes of this contract, eligible vegetative debris that is piled in immediate close proximity to the street, and is accessible from the street with mechanical loading equipment (i.e., not behind a fence or other physical obstacle) will be removed.
- b. Removal of eligible vegetative debris existing in the City will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager.
- c. Once the debris removal vehicle has been issued a load ticket from the City's authorized representative, the debris removal vehicle will proceed immediately to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site. The debris removal vehicle will not collect additional debris once a load ticket has been issued.
- d. All eligible debris will be removed from each location before proceeding to the next location unless directed otherwise by the City or its authorized representative.
- e. Entry onto private property for the removal of eligible vegetative hazards will only be permitted when directed by the City or its authorized representative. The City will provide specific Right-of-Entry (ROE) legal and operational procedures.
- f. The Contractor must provide traffic control as conditions require or as directed by the City Debris Manager.

1.3.3 ROW C&D DEBRIS REMOVAL

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to pick up and transport eligible Construction and Demolition (C&D) debris existing on the City ROW to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations.

- a. For the purposes of this contract, eligible C&D debris that is piled in immediate close proximity to the street, and is accessible from the street with loading equipment (i.e., not behind a fence or other physical obstacle) will be removed.
- b. Removal of eligible C&D debris existing in the City ROW will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager.
- c. Once the debris removal vehicle has been issued a load ticket from the City's authorized representative, the debris removal vehicle will proceed immediately to a City approved Final Disposal Site. The debris removal vehicle will not collect additional debris once a load ticket has been issued.
- d. All eligible debris will be removed from each location before proceeding to the next location unless directed otherwise by the City or its authorized representative.
- e. Entry onto private property for the removal of eligible C&D hazards will only be permitted when directed by the City or its authorized representative. The City will provide specific ROE legal and operational procedures.

- f. The Contractor must provide certified MOT method of traffic control as conditions require or directed by the City Debris Manager.
- g. C&D debris must be monitored for the collection, complete haul, and delivery at the approved final disposal site. The City's authorized representative will obtain the original copy of the disposal or scale ticket showing the inbound and outbound collection vehicle weights.

1.3.4 REMOVAL OF DEBRIS FROM CITY PARKS AND FACILITIES

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to pick up and transport eligible disaster-related trees, vegetative, and non-vegetative debris existing in City Parks and Facilities to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations.

All debris removal from City Parks and Facilities will be at the approval and authorization of the City prior to removal.

1.3.5 REMOVAL OF DEBRIS FROM CANALS/WATERWAYS

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to pick up and transport eligible disaster-related vegetative debris existing in City maintained canals and waterways to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations.

Removal of trees, vegetative, and non-vegetative debris deposited into drainage easements and natural and man-made canals and waterways that inhibit the natural flow of water and threatens flooding of improved property is a unique process requiring unique equipment. As such, this process requires unique documentation and costing.

All debris removal from canals and waterways will be at the approval and authorization of the City prior to removal.

All debris removal shall be done from the waterway, unless otherwise approved by the City

If Right of Entry is required to access and remove debris from public canal or waterway it is the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain, and it shall only be obtained with prior approval of the City.

1.3.6 TDMS(S) MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS AND REDUCTION THROUGH GRINDING

The City may utilize a cradle to grave approach, however, if the disaster event warrants the need for TDMS: Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel,

traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to manage and operate TDMS(s) for the acceptance, management, segregation, staging and reduction through grinding of eligible disaster related debris. Grinding must be approved by the City Debris Manager prior to commencement of reduction activities. The TDMS(s) layout and ingress and egress plan must be approved by the City Debris Manager. The management of TDMS(s) includes assistance in obtaining necessary local, state and federal permits or approval and operating in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies which may include, but are not limited, to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and FDEP. The Contractor shall also be responsible for any and all costs associated with third-party groundwater and soil testing.

- a. Contractor is responsible for operating the TDMS(s) in accordance with Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), EPA and FDEP guidelines.
- b. Debris at TDMS(s) will be clearly segregated and managed independently by debris type (C&D, vegetative debris, white goods, and other scope of service items), program (ROW collection, private property debris removal, etc.) and applicant(s).
- c. All un-reduced disaster debris must be staged separately from reduced debris at the TDMS(s).
- d. Maintaining the TDMS approach and interior road(s) for all weather conditions for the entire period of debris hauling, including provision of crushed concrete for any roads that require stabilization for ingress and egress.
- e. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide TDMS(s) utilities such as, but not limited to, water, lighting and portable toilets.
- f. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide TDMS(s) traffic control such as, but not limited to, traffic cones and staff with traffic flags.
- g. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide TDMS(s) dust control and erosion control such as, but not limited to, an operational water truck, silt fencing and other best management practices (BMPs).
- h. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide Stormwater management.
- i. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide TDMS(s) fire protection such as, but not limited to, an operational water truck (sufficient and equipped for fire protection), fire breaks and a site foreman.
- j. Contractor is responsible for all associated costs necessary to provide qualified personnel, as well as lined containers or containment areas, for the segregation of visible HHW/contaminants that may be mixed with disaster debris. The cost associated with qualified personnel and lined containers/containment areas for HHW/contaminant segregation, is a cost reflected in this scope of services. HHW/contaminant material segregated and stored in line containers at the TDMS will be collected by the City's Hazardous Materials Removal and Disposal Contractor(s).
- k. Contractor is responsible for providing twenty-four (24) hour TDMS(s) security.
- 1. Contractor will only permit Contractor vehicles and others specifically authorized by the City or its authorized representative on site(s).

- m. Contractor shall provide a tower(s) from which the City or its authorized representative can make volumetric load calls.
- n. Contractor is soley responsible for the cost of any and all damaged caused by the removal of debris.

Upon completion of haul-out activities, the Contractor will be responsible for remediating the physical features of the site to its original or better condition prior to site use. Site remediation will include, but is not limited to, returning the original site grade, sod, and other physical features. Site remediation does not include restoring fencing, lighting, and other permanent structures that may have been demolished at the City's direction for TDMS operations. All debris, mulch, and other residual material is to be removed adequately; fill dirt and/or other base material (if required) must meet standards for intended use; new sod or seeding must meet standards for intended use. Site remediation will also include returning all utilized sites to their original condition as verified through soil and groundwater samples. Site remediation will abide by all state and federal environmental regulatory requirements and is subject to final approval by the City and FDEP.

Per Section of this document, entitled "Environmental Protection", Contractor is responsible for the containment, collection, and safe disposal of all hazardous materials, including but not limited to fuel, oil, and chemicals. Contractor is responsible for all costs associated with the clean- up of hazardous materials; and clean-up shall be in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

1.3.7 HAUL-OUT OF REDUCED DEBRIS TO CITY APPROVED FINAL DISPOSAL SITE

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and associated costs necessary to load and transport reduced eligible material such as ash, compacted C&D or mulch existing at a City approved TDMS (s) to a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations.

- a. The City plans on identifying two TDMS locations to be used, one East of I-75 and one West of I-75. The TDMS location(s) identified by the City for use in 2017-2018 are noted in **Attachment L.** Currently, the TDMS location East of I-75 has been identified, however the location West of I-75 will be determined at a later date. Contractor and the City will annually review these and any alternate sites for debris management to identify the TDMSs for use during each year of this contract. TDMSs shall be for the exclusive use of the City of Pembroke Pines.
- b. The Contractor(s) shall be prepared to provide additional TDMS sites, as approved by the City. The name and address of each disposal facility to be used along with the name and the telephone number of a responsible party for each facility will be required prior to commencing the work.
- c. The Contractor (s) shall not use any disposal facility without the written consent of the Solid Debris Manager. All costs and fees associated with the disposal of

- debris shall be reviewed for reasonableness by the Debris Manager prior to issuing any such authorization.
- d. The Contractor (s) shall initiate and manage the execution of a written three-party agreement between the disposal site owner/operator, the Contractor (s) and the City for permission to post a City inspector or authorized representative at the site for verification of each load disposed.
- e. The Contractor shall provide a sufficient number of debris site towers and/or certified scales meeting City specifications to provide for the efficient delivery of waste streams without excessive waiting times. The City shall make the sole determination of excessive wait times. To the extent that the City determines that additional towers and/or scales are required, additional towers must be operational within forty-eight (48) hours of the City's request and certified scales must be operational within five (5) business days of the City's request.
- f. At the completion of disposal operations, each disposal facility will issue a written summary of the quantity, type and origin of waste delivered.
- g. The Contractor shall not receive any payment from the City for haul-out or load tickets related to reduced or unreduced debris transported and disposed of at a non-City approved Final Disposal Site.

1.3.8 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS LEANING TREES AND HANGING LIMBS

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to remove all eligible hazardous trees six (6) inches or greater in diameter, measured four and one half (4 1/2) feet from the base of the tree and eligible hazardous hanging limbs two (2) inches or greater in diameter existing on the City ROW, parks and facilities. Debris generated from the removal of eligible hazardous trees and eligible hanging limbs two (2) inches or greater existing in the City ROW, parks and facilities will be placed in the safest possible location on the City ROW and subsequently removed in accordance with scope of services under the terms, conditions and procedure described in "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal". Eligible hazardous leaning trees less than six (6) inches in diameter, measured four and one-half (4 ½) feet from the base of the tree, will be flush cut, loaded and removed in accordance with the terms, conditions, and compensation schedule for "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal". The collection of all eligible hazardous leaning trees and eligible hazardous hanging limbs must be performed on the same day as the cut work. If there is insufficient room for safe placement along the City ROW, then Contractor must load the resulting debris as eligible hazardous leaning trees or eligible hazardous hanging limbs as they are removed.

a. Eligible hazardous trees will be identified by the City or its authorized representative for removal. Removal and placement of eligible hazardous trees six (6) inches or greater in diameter existing on the City ROW, parks and facilities, or private property will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager. All disaster specific eligibility guidelines regarding size and diameter of leaning trees will be communicated to the Contractor, in writing, by the City Debris Manager. In order for leaning or hazardous trees to be removed and eligible for

reimbursement, the tree must satisfy a minimum of one of the following requirements:

- i. The tree is leaning in excess of thirty (30) degrees in a direction that poses an immediate threat to public health, welfare and safety.
- ii. Over fifty percent (50%) of the tree crown is damaged or broken and heartwood is exposed.
- iii. The tree has a split trunk that exposes heartwood.
- b. Eligible hazardous hanging limbs will be identified by the City or its authorized representative for removal. Removal and placement of eligible hazardous hanging limbs two (2) inches or greater in diameter existing on the City ROW, parks and facilities, or private property will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager. All disaster specific eligibility guidelines regarding size and diameter of limbs will be communicated to the Contractor, in writing, by the City Debris Manager. In order for hanging limbs to be removed and eligible for payment, the limb must satisfy all of the following requirements:
 - i. The limb is greater than two (2) inches in diameter.
 - ii. The limb is still hanging in a tree and threatening a public-use area.
 - iii. The limb is located on improved public property.

1.3.9 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS STUMPS

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary to remove all eligible hazardous uprooted stumps greater than twenty-four (24) inches in diameter, measured twenty-four (24) inches from the base of the tree, existing on the City ROW, parks, and facilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for backfilling any voids left in the ground by removed stumps within twenty-four (24) hours of stump removal. Any voids not backfilled immediately following hazardous stump removal must have measures taken in order to protect public health and safety. Further, debris generated from the removal of uprooted stumps existing on the City ROW, parks and facilities will be transported to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site in accordance with all federal, state and local rules and regulations. Eligible stumps measured twenty-four (24) inches from the base of the tree and twenty-four (24) inches or less in diameter will be considered normal eligible vegetative debris and removed in accordance with "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal". The diameter of eligible stumps less than twenty-four (24) inches will be converted into a cubic yardage volume based on the published FEMA stump conversion table (See Stump Conversion Table in FEMA DAP9523.11, Hazardous Stump Extraction and Removal Eligibility, dated May 2007, or any subsequent edition) and removed under the terms and conditions "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal".

a. Eligible hazardous stumps will be identified by the City or its authorized representative for removal. Removal and transportation of eligible hazardous uprooted stumps existing on the City ROW, parks, facilities, or private property

will be performed as identified by the City Debris Manager. All disaster specific eligibility guidelines regarding size and diameter of hazardous stumps will be communicated to the Contractor, in writing, by the City Debris Manager. In order for hazardous stumps to be removed and eligible for reimbursement, the stump must satisfy the following criteria:

- i. Fifty percent (50%) or more of the root ball is exposed.
- ii. The stump is on City ROW and poses an immediate threat to public health, safety or welfare.
- b. Tree stumps that are not attached to the ground will be considered normal vegetative debris and are subject to removal under the terms and conditions of "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal". Stumps with less than fifty percent (50%) of the root ball exposed shall be flush cut to the ground. The stump portion of the tree will not be removed but the residual debris (i.e. tree trunk) will be removed under the terms and conditions of "ROW Vegetative Debris Removal". The cubic yard volume of unattached stumps will be based off of the diameter conversion using the published FEMA stump conversion table (See Stump Conversion Table in FEMA DAP9523.11, Hazardous Stump Extraction and Removal Eligibility, dated May 2007, or any subsequent edition).
- c. Stumps shall only be collected after the monitoring firm(s) and the Contractor(s) document and perform the following:
 - i. Location. Determine the uprooted stump is located on improved public property or a public right-of-way. Record and document the location through means of photography, map depiction, and specific descriptive notations.
 - ii. Size. Measure and record the diameter of the stump to be removed at the appropriate location.
 - iii. Marking. Stumps will be marked and uniquely numbered with green paint. Ineligible stumps will be marked with red paint.
 - iv. Stump Worksheet. Hazardous Stump Worksheet provided by the monitoring firm(s) will be completed in full for each stump, capturing the following information: 1) Names and signatures of parties present, 2) Physical location (street address, road cross streets, etc.); 3) stump number, 4) size of stump; 5) date.
- d. The unit stump price shall be all inclusive to include but not limited to: stump extraction, stump cavity filling with compacted soils and installation of seed and/or sod, stump hauling, and stump reduction.

1.3.10 ROW WHITE GOODS DEBRIS REMOVAL

Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary for the collection of white goods from the ROW,

removal of refrigerants, transportation to a City approved TDMS, decontamination, and transportation to a City approved final disposal site. White goods containing refrigerants must first have such refrigerants removed by the Contractor's qualified technicians prior to mechanical loading.

White goods can be collected without first having refrigerants removed if the white goods are manually placed into a hauling vehicle with lifting equipment so that the elements containing refrigerants are not damaged.

White goods are banned from landfill disposal in the state of Florida, but are accepted for recycling.

- a. The removal, transportation and recycling of eligible white goods includes obtaining all necessary local, state and federal handling permits and operating in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies.
 - i. All white goods containing food items shall be decontaminated in accordance with local, state and federal law prior to recycling.
- b. The Contractor shall recycle all eligible white goods in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, State and federal regulatory agencies.
- c. Refrigerant containing items will have such refrigerants removed prior to mechanical loading or will be manually loaded and hauled to a City approved final disposal site.

1.3.11 HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE (HHW) REMOVAL, TRANSPORT, AND DISPOSAL

- a. Unless requested by the City to remove HHW from the ROW, the Contractor shall not collect HHW from the ROW. Such request by the City shall be made in writing. If requested by the City, the Contractor shall adhere to all relevant Federal, State, and Local Rules, Laws, and Guidelines, in addition to the following:
 - i. Contractor shall be responsible for proper handling and disposal of all HHW that is transported to the City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site.
 - ii. Under this contract, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs, and other associated costs necessary for the removal, transportation, and disposal of eligible HHW from the ROW to a permitted hazardous waste facility or MSW type I landfill, as requested by the City.
 - iii. The removal, transportation, and disposal of eligible HHW includes obtaining all necessary local, state, and federal handling permits, and

- operating in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state, and federal regulatory agencies.
- iv. All HHW shall be managed as hazardous waste and disposed of at a permitted hazardous waste facility or MSW type I landfill.

1.3.12 E-WASTE REMOVAL

- a. Under the Contract Contractor may be requested to remove E-Waste from the ROW. Such request by the City shall be made in writing. If requested by the City, the Contractor shall adhere to all relevant Federal, State, and Local Rules, Laws, and Guidelines, in addition to the following:
 - i. Under this element, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary for the removal, transportation, and proper disposal of eligible E-Waste from the ROW to a City approved processing facility. Eligible E-Waste includes, but is not limited to, televisions, computers, computer monitors, and microwaves in areas identified and approved by the City. The Contractor shall recycle or dispose of all eligible E-Waste Items in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies.

1.3.13 ABANDONED VEHICLE REMOVAL

Under this element, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary for the removal and transport of eligible Abandoned Vehicles in areas identified and approved by the City. The removed eligible vehicles will be hauled to a City approved staging area and subsequently removed by the appropriate insurance company or regulatory agency.

The removal, transportation and disposal of eligible abandoned vehicles includes obtaining all necessary local, state and federal handling permits and operating in accordance with rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies.

No vehicles shall be removed without prior City Approval. Such approval may be made for a single vehicle or multiple vehicles depending upon the scope and severity of the debris-generating event.

1.3.14 DEAD ANIMAL CARCASSES

Under this element, work shall consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs and other associated costs necessary for the removal, transportation, and lawful disposal of dead animal carcasses from the ROW to a City approved Final Disposal Site. Contractor shall coordinate activities with the Broward County Animal Services Division and the Broward County Health Department.



1.3.15 OTHER DEBRIS REMOVAL WORK

Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractors shall solicit work from private citizens or others to be performed in the designated work areas during the term of this agreement. The City reserves the right to require the Contractor to dismiss or remove from the project any workers as the City sees necessary. Any debris removal vehicles dismissed from the project must have their issued placard removed and destroyed.

1.3.16 EVENT COORDINATION

The Contractor(s) shall contact City of Pembroke Pines Debris Manager at a minimum of forty- eight (48) hours prior to a hurricane event or immediately upon the occurrence of a debris- generating incident within the City of Pembroke Pines for which there is no advance warning. After a disaster occurs, a designated City employee will contact the Contractor(s) holding the Disaster Debris Removal and Disposal contract to advise them of the City's intent to activate the contract for removal and disposal of disaster debris. Before work begins, the City must issue a written Notice to Proceed. Within eight (8) hours of receiving the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor(s) will send a management team to report to the City Debris Manager to begin planning for the operations and mobilizing the personnel and equipment as necessary to perform the work. Mobilization by the Contractor(s) shall begin within twenty-four (24) hours of notification by the City. Within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be fully established and continue debris removal operations. The Contractor(s) shall make every effort to be at the disaster site within the stated time frame. The removal and disposal work must be conducted in a systematic and predictable manner.

1.3.17 PRE-EVENT COORDINATION MEETING

The successful Contractor(s) shall be required to attend an annual pre-hurricane season kick-off meeting with the City and its debris monitoring firm(s) at no cost to the City.

1.3.18 DESCRIPTION OF DESIGNATED AREAS

The Designated area for debris removal (the City right-of-way) is bounded by the City's boundary and includes public property and rights-of-way, City parks, and City debris staging areas within the City limits.

a. If tasked with debris removal on Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Emergency Relief (ER) Program Eligible roadways, the Contractor will be required to provide crews separate from those providing City ROW debris removal services. The crews designated to provide debris removal from FHWA-ER eligible roadways will make one pass to collect debris from FHWA-ER eligible roadways. Further, the Contractor shall abide by all eligibility requirements and guidance set forth by the most current guidance from FHWA for debris removal on FHWA-ER Program eligible roadways.

- b. The City Debris Manager will authorize and approve which services the Contractor shall provide from the scope of services and which zones/areas must be prioritized.
- c. All debris identified by the City Debris Manager shall be removed. The number of complete passes the Contractor shall conduct through the City is at the discretion of the City Debris Manager. Partial removal of debris piles is strictly prohibited. The Contractor shall not move from one designated work area to another designated work area without prior approval from the City or its authorized representative. Any eligible debris, such as fallen trees, which extends onto the ROW from private property, shall be cut at the point where it enters the ROW, and that part of the debris which lies within the ROW shall be removed. The Contractor shall not enter onto private property during the performance of this contract unless specifically authorized by the City Debris Manager in writing.
- d. For first pass loose leaves and small debris in excess of two bushel baskets shall be removed within the designated area. No debris shall be left on the road surface. No single piece of debris larger than twelve (12) inches in any dimension shall be left at the point of collection.
- e. For subsequent and/or final pass loose leaves and small debris in excess of one bushel basket shall be removed within the designated area. No debris shall be left on the road surface. No single piece of debris larger than six (6) inches in any dimension shall be left at the point of collection.
- f. Contractor shall deliver all disaster related debris to a City approved Final Disposal Site that has been approved to receive disaster-generated debris and adhere to all local, state and federal regulations.
- g. All Final Disposal Sites must be approved, in writing, by the City Debris Manager. The Contractor will be responsible for the handling, reduction and final haul-out and disposal of all reduced and unreduced debris. TDMS operations and remediation must comply with all local, state and federal safety and environmental standards. Contractor reduction, handling, disposal and remediation methods must be approved, in writing, by the City Debris Manager.
- h. Tipping fees should not be included in the prices submitted in the Contractor's proposal. The City of Pembroke Pines shall pay the tipping fees directly to the disposal site(s) based on separately established agreements with the disposal site(s). In the event that the City authorizes the Contractor to utilize another disposal site in which the City does not have a separately established agreement, payment for disposal costs such as tipping fees incurred by the Contractor at a City approved Final Disposal Site that meet local, state and federal regulations for disposal will be reimbursed by the City as a pass through cost. Prior to reimbursement by the City, the Contractor must furnish an invoice in hard copy and electronic format matching scale/weigh tickets numbers with load ticket or haul-out ticket numbers and other applicable information. The Contractor will also be required to provide proof of Contractor payment to the City approved Final Disposal Site.
- i. The Contractor shall conduct the work so as not to interfere with the disaster response and recovery activities of local, state and federal governments or agencies, or of any public utilities.



j. The City reserves the right to inspect TDMS and FDS, verify quantities and review operations at any time.

1.3.19 TEMPORARY DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SITES AND FINAL DISPOSAL SITES

The Contractor is responsible for providing final disposal of all debris generated and collected within the City in accordance to requirements of FEMA, FHWA, FDEP, and all other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. The City prefers a "cradle to grave" approach therefore, prior to the award of this agreement, and annually thereafter, the Contractor shall provide a list of Final Disposal Site(s) to be used for debris disposal.

If, due to the size and/or magnitude of the disaster event, TDMS locations are needed for the operation, the City plans on identifying two TDMS locations to be used, one East of I-75 and one West of I-75. The TDMS location(s) identified by the City for use in 2017-2018 are noted in **Attachment L**. Currently, the TDMS location East of I-75 has been identified, however the location West of I-75 will be determined at a later date. Contractor and the City will annually review these and any alternate sites for debris management to identify the TDMSs for use during each year of this contract. TDMSs shall be for the exclusive use of the City of Pembroke Pines. The Contractor(s) shall be prepared to provide additional TDMS sites, as approved by the City. The name and address of each disposal facility to be used along with the name and the telephone number of a responsible party for each facility will be required prior to commencing the work. Contractor shall have TDMS sites ready to open and receive debris within twentyfour (24) to thirty-six (36) hours of notification by the City Debris Manager. TDMSs will be activated on an "as needed" basis. In the event that no City TDMS sites are opened, Contractor shall transport debris directly to a disposal facility identified by the Contractor and approved by the City.

Contractor will thoroughly videotape and/or photograph each TDMS before any activities begin, and will periodically update video and photographic documentation to track site evolution.

Contractor shall provide all equipment and personnel to manage, maintain, and operate the TDMS sites. The number of active sites will be determined by the City's Debris Manager and/or Debris Monitor based on the severity of the disaster. The Debris Manager will provide access and authorization to Contractor to operate on the designated TDMS sites, including all information in the Debris Manager's possession regarding the sites that is necessary for successful operation. Pre-event planning information shall be included in the annual plan of operations.

Contractor will be responsible for preparing each TDMS to accept debris including, but not limited to, any site work and materials necessary to build and maintain stabilized roads for ingress or egress or any roads throughout the site; construction of two (2) roofed inspection towers (one for incoming vehicles and one for outgoing vehicles) of

sufficient height and design for a minimum of three (3) inspectors; any environmental requirements such as wind-born debris control fencing, silt fencing or water retention berms; construction of an area for an office trailer and parking; and any other items necessary for site operations and management. Contractor will be responsible for providing portable sanitary facilities and sewage treatment; potable water, fuel, electricity, and any other utilities necessary at the TDMS sites. Contractor shall provide utility clearances as appropriate.

Contractor shall process Vegetative Debris and Mixed Debris delivered to TDMS sites on a daily basis. Prior to processing, all debris shall be segregated between Vegetative Debris, C&D Debris, White Goods, E-Waste, Hazardous Waste, and other Mixed Debris so as to maximize recovery and recycling efforts with City approval. Processing may include, but is not limited to, reduction by tub grinding, air curtain incineration when approved, or other alternate methods of reduction such as compaction. The Contract Manager will determine the method to be used based on environmental and operational considerations. If incineration is used, the site shall have a fire tender on duty twenty-four (24) hours per day. However, incineration is not a preferred method of debris reduction for the City.

Contractor shall chip/grind Vegetative Debris within forty-eight (48) hours of receipt at a TDMS. Chips/mulch should be stored in piles no higher than fifteen (15) feet and meet all local regulations and laws. No more than seven (7) days of chipped debris shall remain on the ground at a TDMS.

Contractor shall ensure that every load entering or leaving the TDMS sites is inspected by the City's Debris Monitor and that proper documentation is completed, including a load ticket, to verify and document the contents and cubic yards.

Contractor shall be responsible for proper handling, storage, and disposal of any Hazardous Waste brought to the TDMS sites in accordance with Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. DMC shall provide a suitable area at each TDMS to accommodate all Hazardous Waste. The area shall be lined with impervious material surrounded with berms or other containment structures to contain any potential leakage.

Contractor shall be responsible for transporting and disposing of all materials received and processed at the TDMS sites in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations. Contractor shall be responsible for locating disposal sites in the best interest of the City and present such sites to the City for review. Contractor shall obtain, on behalf of the City, and shall provide the City with a written contract for each disposal site. The City shall direct waste flow and approve all disposal sites prior to use. Contractor shall be responsible for documenting cubic yardage or tonnage and tip fee rates without mark-up for reimbursement. Tipping fees should not be included in the prices submitted in the Contractor's proposal. The City of Pembroke Pines shall pay the tipping fees directly to the disposal site(s) based on separately established agreements with the disposal site(s). In the event that the City authorizes the Contractor to utilize another disposal site in which the City does not have a separately established agreement,

payment for disposal costs such as tipping fees incurred by the Contractor at a City approved Final Disposal Site that meet local, state and federal regulations for disposal will be reimbursed by the City as a pass through cost. Prior to reimbursement by the City, the Contractor must furnish an invoice in hard copy and electronic format matching scale/weigh tickets numbers with load ticket or haul-out ticket numbers and other applicable information. The Contractor will also be required to provide proof of Contractor payment to the City approved Final Disposal Site.

Contractor shall be responsible for installing site security measures and maintaining security for operations at the site.

The cost associated with acquiring, preparing, operating, remediating land used as TDMS in the City is a cost borne by the Contractor and compensated based on the Contractor's bid for site management and reduction of debris as shown on "TDMS Operation and Reduction Through Grinding" in the price proposal section.

The City may also establish designated Residential Convenience Centers (residential drop-off sites). The Contractor will be responsible for removing all disaster related debris from those sites. Contractor shall not collect debris from the Residential Convenience Centers while sites are open to the public and / or when residents occupy the site. Depending on the volume of debris at a Residential Convenience Center, the Contractor may be required to push material to make room for additional debris.

The Contractor's Operations Manager will assign a Foreman to the (each) TDMS, who will be responsible for the management of all operations of the site, including traffic control, dumping operations, segregation of debris, grinding, fire protection, safety, and applicable requirements of the Section of this document entitled "TDMS(s) Management, Operations, and Reduction Through Grinding". The TDMS Foreman will be responsible for monitoring and documenting equipment and labor time and providing the daily operational report to the Contractor's Operation Manager, who will in turn provide this information to the City. These daily reports must meet the requirements of FEMA, FHWA, or Other Federal Agencies, and other reimbursement and regulatory governmental agencies.

Contractor shall reclaim each TDMS to its pre-use condition or better within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving the last load of disaster-related debris. Closure shall include, but not be limited to, removal of all equipment and debris, grading the site to historical conditions, seeding and mulching of exposed areas, repairing irrigation fences and roads, and removing all remnants from the processing operation (such as temporary toilets, observation towers, security fence, etc.). The site will be restored in accordance with all local and contractual requirements. TDMS site remediation will also include returning all utilized sites to their original condition as verified through soil and groundwater samples. TDMS remediation will abide by all state and federal environmental regulatory requirements and is subject to final approval by the City and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP).

1.4 TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1.4.1 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The City reserves the right to terminate the contract with the Contractor(s) at any time and for any reason.

1.4.2 NOTICE TO PROCEED

The City shall issue an official Notice to Proceed for the services referenced in this RFP and resulting contract. The Notice to Proceed shall be sent via facsimile or email and followed by regular mail. Under no circumstances shall the City be liable for any services rendered unless the written Notice to Proceed has been sent and received by the Contractor(s). The Contractor(s) mu acknowledge receipt of the written Notice to Proceed.

1.4.3 CHANGES IN SCOPE OF WORK

The City Manager may request changes in the scope of work to be performed. Such changes, including increase or decrease in compensation must be annually agreed upon and incorporated by written amendment to the agreement.

1.4.4 SAFETY

The Contractor(s) shall be solely responsible for maintaining a safe work environment at all work sites including TDMS (s) and debris collection sites. The Contractor(s) shall take all reasonable steps to insure safety for both workers and visitors to TDMS (s) and debris collection sites. Safety at TDMS (s) and debris collection sites includes traffic control such as traffic cones and flag personnel. The Contractor(s) will also be solely responsible to ensure that all OSHA requirements are met and a safety officer assigned to the project for the duration of this contract.

1.4.5 ON-SITE PROJECT MANAGER

The Contractor(s) shall provide an on-site project manager to the City. The project manager shall provide a telephone number to the City with which he or she can be reached for the duration of the project. The project manager will be expected to have daily meetings with the City Debris Manager and/or City authorized representatives. Daily meeting topics will include, but are not limited to, volume of debris collected completion progress, City coordination, and damage repairs. Frequency of meetings may be adjusted by the City Debris Manager. The Contractor(s)' project manager must be available twenty-four (24) hours a day, or as required by the City Debris Manager.

1.5 SUPERINTENDENT SHALL BE SUPPLIED BY THE CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent who shall be in attendance at all times at the project site during the progress of the work. The term "competent" includes an ability to be able to clearly communicate, orally and in writing, in English. The superintendent shall be the primary representative under this contract for the Contractor. All authorized communications given to the superintendent by the City, and all contract-related decisions made by the superintendent, shall be binding to the Contractor. The superintendent shall be considered to be, at all times, an employee of the Contractor under its sole direction and not an employee or agent of the City.

1.6 EQUIPMENT

- a. All trucks and other equipment must be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal rules and regulations. Any truck used to haul debris must be capable of rapidly unloading its contents without the assistance of other equipment, be equipped with a tailgate that will effectively contain the debris during transport and permit the truck to be filled to capacity.
- b. Sideboards or other extensions to the bed are allowable provided they meet all applicable FDOT and FEMA rules and regulations, cover the front and both sides and are constructed in a manner to withstand severe operating conditions. The sideboards are to be constructed of two (2) inch by six (6) inch boards or greater and not to extend more than two (2) feet above the metal bedsides. Trucks or equipment certified with sideboards must maintain such sideboards and keep them in good repair. In order to ensure compliance, equipment will be inspected by the City's authorized representatives prior to its use by the Contractor(s). The City or its authorized representative may also perform periodic re-inspection of vehicles to verify the certified capacity.
- c. Debris shall be reasonably compacted into the hauling vehicle. Any debris extending above the top of the bed shall be secured in place so as to prevent them from falling off. Measures must be taken to avoid the debris blowing out of the hauling vehicle during transport to a City approved TDMS or a City approved Final Disposal Site. If falling debris from hauling vehicles presents an issue the City reserves the right to require the contractor to "tarp" or cover debris when hauling.
- d. Trucks or equipment designated for use under this contract shall not be used for any other work. The Contractor(s) shall not solicit work from private citizens or others to be performed in the designated work area during the period of this contract. Under no circumstances will the Contractor(s) mix debris hauled for others with debris hauled under this contract. Failure to abide may result in a suspension of the violating truck, crew, or sub-contractor.
- e. Equipment used under this contract shall be rubber tired and sized properly to fit loading conditions. Excessive size equipment (100 cubic yards and up) and non-rubber tired equipment must be approved for use on the road by the City Debris Manager.
- f. Hand loaded vehicles are prohibited unless pre-authorized, in writing, by the City Debris Manager, following the event. All hand-loaded vehicles will receive an automatic fifty percent (50%) deduction for lack of compaction.

1.7 TRAFFIC CONTROL

The Contractor(s) shall mitigate the impact of their operations on local traffic to the fullest extent practical. The Contractor(s) is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate traffic controls in all work areas, including TDMS (s) and debris collection sites. The Contractor(s) shall provide sufficient signing, flagging and barricading to ensure the safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic in all work areas. All work shall be done in conformity with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, and ordinances governing personnel, equipment and work place safety. Any notification of a deficiency in traffic control or other safety items shall be immediately corrected by the Contractor(s). No further work shall take place until the deficiency is corrected. Neither the City Debris Manager nor the authorized representative shall sign any additional load or unit rate tickets until the safety item is corrected. The expense incurred by the Contractor for traffic control is an overhead expense contemplated as part of the Contractor's compensation under the terms and conditions of scope of services.

Traffic control will conform to FDOT's most current editions of "Roadway and Traffic Design Standards" for Design, Construction, and Maintained Systems and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) for Streets and Highways." These documents can be ordered from F.D.O.T, Maps and Publications Department, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0450, Phone (904) 488-9220. The foregoing requirements are to be considered as minimum and the Contractor's compliance shall in no way relieve the Contractor of final responsibility for providing adequate traffic control devices for the protection of the public and Contractor's employees throughout the work area.

1.8 RAPID RESPONSE CREW

Contractor(s) shall be required to provide the City with access to one or more Rapid Response Crews (RRC) as directed by the City. The purpose of the RRC is to respond immediately to disaster related debris piles as directed by the City Debris Manager or the City's authorized representative. The RRC assists in the overall cleanup effort by responding to and collecting disaster related debris which the City deems a priority for overall City recovery.

1.9 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE

The Contractors(s) shall set aside and reasonably protect any hazardous materials encountered during debris removal operations for collection and disposal by the City's Hazardous Materials Removal and Disposal Contract. The Contractors(s) shall notify the City's monitoring firm(s) of the nature and location of any such debris encountered.

The Contractors(s) and personnel must make every reasonable effort to avoid transporting hazardous materials to the TDMS (s) or final disposal sites that are not specifically authorized to accept such materials. Should these materials be inadvertently

transported to the aforementioned locations, the Contractor(s) shall be responsible for proper handling and storage of any hazardous materials brought by his/her workforce. The Contractors (s) shall provide a suitable area at each TDMS to accommodate all hazardous materials inadvertently brought to the site.

1.10 WORK HOURS

The Contractor(s) shall conduct those debris removal operations generating noise levels above that normally associated with routine traffic flow, during daylight hours only. Work may be performed seven (7) days per week. Adjustments to work hours, as local conditions may dictate, shall be coordinated between the City and the Contractor(s). Unless otherwise directed, the Contractor must be capable of conducting volumetric reduction operations at TDMS locations on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week basis. No work will be performed on the following holidays without prior approval of the City Debris Manager:

- a. New Year's Day
- b. Martin Luther King Jr. Day
- c. President's Day
- d. Memorial Day
- e. Independence Day
- f. Labor Day
- g. Veteran's Day
- h. Thanksgiving Day
- i. Day after Thanksgiving
- i. Christmas Eve
- k. Christmas Day

1.11 TIME OF COMPLETION

The services shall commence upon written notice to proceed from the City Manager or his designee, and the project shall be completed in accordance with the project schedule.

1.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Should the Contractor fail to complete requirements set forth in this scope of work, the City will suffer damage. The amount of damage suffered by the City is difficult, if not impossible to determine at this time. Therefore the Contractor shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, the following:

- a. The Contractor shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, \$1,000.00 per calendar day of delay to mobilize in the City with the resources required to begin debris removal operations, within seventy-two (72) hours of being issued Notice to Proceed.
- b. The Contractor shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, \$250.00 per calendar day per debris removal truck not mobilized in the City within seventy-two (72)

- hours of the City requesting initial debris removal for up to 10 trucks. (10 minus [# of trucks responding]) times \$250 per calendar day)
- c. The Contractor shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, \$500.00 per load of disaster debris collected in the City that is not disposed of at a City approved TDMS or City approved Final Disposal Site and/or any associated fines levied by a third party. Application of liquidated damaged does not release the Contractor of all liability associated with hauling and depositing material to an unauthorized location.
- d. The Contractor shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, \$500.00 per incident where the Contractor fails to repair damages that are caused by the Contractor or subcontractor(s). Application of liquidated damages does not release the Contractor from the responsibility of resolving or repairing damages.

The amounts specified above are mutually agreed upon as reasonable and proper amount of damage the City should suffer by failure of the Contractor to complete requirements set forth in the scope of work.

1.13 DAMAGES

All items damaged as a result of Contractor(s) or subcontractor operations, such as but not limited to, sidewalks, curbs, pipes, drains, water mains, pavement, mail boxes, and turf shall be either repaired or replaced by the Contractor, at their expense, in a manner prescribed by and at the sole satisfaction of the City Debris Manager. Any invoices submitted to the City such as but not limited to, from utility companies, or landowners, which are determined to be the result of damage done by the Contractor, shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Repairs, or receipt of repairs, shall be completed and submitted to the City prior to submission of the Contractor's invoice for work accomplished. If the Contractor(s) fails to repair any damaged property, the City may have the work performed and charge the Contractor(s).

The Contractor(s) shall be responsible for filling to grade with like material all surface damage, such as rutting and cracks, caused by the Contractor(s)'s equipment during debris removal. The Contractor(s) shall repair all damage to existing grade, road shoulders, trees, shrubs, and grassed areas caused by the Contractor(s)'s equipment or personnel at no additional cost to the City. If the Contractor does damage to a City sign or other property owned by the City, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor(s) to repair the item back to the original condition. If the repair is not in accordance with City standards, the City shall repair the items and deduct the associated cost from the amount due the Contractor. The Contractor(s) shall preserve and protect all existing vegetation such as trees, shrubs, and grass on or adjacent to the area of work.

Complaints will be addressed within forty-eight (48) hours and a written report submitted to the City Debris Manager outlining actions taken to correct the complaint. The Contractor shall notify the City immediately of any complaints given directly to the Contractor.

Upon written notice from the Contractor that the damage correction work is complete, the City will make a final inspection with the Contractor and will notify the Contractor in writing of any deficiencies in the project. The Contractor will correct all deficiencies before final acceptance and payment is made. If a second re-inspection is required, the City will assess an eighty (\$80.00) dollar fee to the Contractor. The eighty (\$80.00) dollar fee will be assessed for every re-inspection after the first re-inspection. The fee is assessed to offset the additional City labor costs and vehicle usage required for unnecessary inspections and the fee will be deducted from the final invoice for that release order.

No retention will be released to the Contractor(s) prior to a satisfactory damage resolution log being completed addressing all complaints and issues. Should the value of retention exceed the amount of possible outstanding damage claims, the Contractor(s) may petition the City in writing for a partial retainage release.

1.14 EXISTING UTILITIES

- a. Some trees and debris that are to be removed under this contract may be blocked or entangled with overhead power, telephone and television cables. In this case, it shall be Contractor's responsibility to coordinate directly with the utility owners to arrange for the removal of the debris without damage to the overhead and underground utility lines (i.e. water and sewer). The Contractor(s) shall pay all such costs to the utility company for any adjustments.
- b. The Contractor(s) shall be responsible for all costs incurred to repair damaged utilities that are caused by the Contractor, as determined by the affected utility company. Payment for repairs to all municipal and privately owned utilities shall be the responsibility of the Contractor(s).

1.15 OWNERSHIP OF DEBRIS

All debris residing in the City ROW shall be the property of the City until final disposal at a properly permitted disposal site. The Contractor(s) shall be responsible for removal of debris up to the point where debris can only be described as light litter and additional collection can be facilitated only by sweeping and raking. In addition to debris stored on the right-of-way as the result of road clearing, the City will direct residents to place debris in segregated piles along the right-of- way, separated as to the waste category. There may be the need to perform some curbside separation of the different materials. Different waste materials will be collected in separate vehicles and may require disposal at different locations, which will be approved by the City. Any items requiring disposal at special facilities shall be required to be monitored for the collection, complete haul, and delivery at the approved special location with the monitor obtaining an original copy of the disposal ticket showing inbound and outbound collection vehicle weights.

All bagged and bundled waste and debris smaller than two (2) inches in diameter and shorter than two (2) feet in length are outside the scope of this contract unless specifically

directed by the City. Collection of Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) is outside the scope of this contract.

It is recognized that construction and demolition debris might contain small amounts of asbestos, lead-based paints, treated wood or similar materials. The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) will issue an Emergency Final Order for the classification and disposition of all disaster related wastes. Based on the mandates of this State agency and other applicable state and federal reimbursement agencies, the determination of the character and disposal of waste streams will be decided. The Contractor(s) shall receive a copy of this letter and together with the Monitoring Firm and City; a final disposal plan will be established.

1.16 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

- a. Any and all fluids or chemicals (work-related materials such as oil-dri, absorbents, etc.) used by the Contractor(s) must be used and disposed of in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies.
- b. Contractor(s) and subcontractors shall not perform maintenance on over-the-road equipment at TDMS(s). Maintenance of equipment that typically remain at the TDMS (e.g., track hoes, front end loaders, grinders, etc.) may be conducted at the TDMS provided best management practices are followed and all wastes are managed and disposed of in accordance with all rules and regulations of local, state and federal regulatory agencies.
- c. The Contractor(s) shall, at its own expense, ensure that noise and dust pollution is minimized to comply with all local and state ordinances and the approval of the City Debris Manager. The Contractor(s) shall comply in a timely manner with all directions of the City Debris Manager regarding the use of a water truck or other approved dust abatement measures.
- d. The Contractor(s) shall comply with all laws, rules, regulations and ordinances regarding environmental protection.
- e. The Contractor must notify the City immediately regarding any fluid or chemical spillage so that the City or its authorized representative can review and approve of the cleanup.
- f. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), and will report violations to FEMA and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

The Contractor shall take immediate containment action as necessary to minimize the effect of any spill or leak. Cleanup shall be done in accordance with applicable federal and local laws and regulations at the sole expense of the contractor.

Petroleum, Oil, and Lubricant Spills shall be reported to the National Response Center, Broward County Environmental Protection Department and the City Debris Manager immediately following discovery. A written follow-up shall be submitted to the City Debris Manager not later than 7 days after the initial report. The written report shall be in narrative form and, as a minimum, shall include the following.

- Description of the material spilled (including any identity, quantity, etc.)
- Determination as to whether or not the amount spilled is EPD/DEP reportable and when and to whom it was reported.
- Exact time and location of spill, including description of the area involved.
- Receiving waters (including, but not limited to canals and drainage areas)
- Cause of incident and equipment and personnel involved.
- Injuries or property damage.
- Duration of discharge.
- Containment procedure implemented.
- Summary of all communications the Contractor has had with press or other officials.
- Description of cleanup procedures employed or to be employed at the site, including disposal location of spill residue.

1.17 DOCUMENTATION AND MEASUREMENT

- Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all labor and equipment used for Emergency Debris Clearance activities is certified and that logs are kept for starting days/times, ending days/times, and zones, areas, and streets worked.
- b. All trucks used for collection and hauling of eligible debris from the City ROW City approved Final Disposal Sites shall be measured (inside bed measurements) and certified for cubic yard volume by the City or City-authorized representative. The Contractor shall provide a representative to attest to the certification/measuring process. It is the Contractor's responsibility to verify the accuracy of truck certifications within forty-eight (48) hours of truck certification (and notify the City of any discrepancies). Placards will be attached to both sides of each certified truck and shall clearly state the truck measurement in cubic yards, Contractor name, assigned truck number, and other pertinent information, as determined by the City Debris Manager. If a vehicle is working under multiple contracts or for multiple communities, it must be re-certified and issued a new placard by a City authorized representative each time it returns to work from other contracts or communities.
- c. The Contractor(s) is responsible for ensuring that all subcontractors maintain a valid driver's licenses and equipment legally fit for travel on the road.
- d. Load tickets will be provided by the City or its authorized representative for recording volumes of debris removal. Unit rate tickets will be provided by the City or its authorized representative for documenting unit rate services, such as hanger or leaning tree removal. Only tickets designated and approved by the City will be authorized for use. Tickets must be completed in a clear and legible manner. Tickets that require Contractor signature will have the signature as well as name printed in a legible manner. Illegible Load & Unit Rate tickets will not be paid.

- e. The City may utilize written or digital load tickets. In the event that written load tickets are utilized, the City anticipates that:
 - Each ticket shall be of a type that consists of one original and four carbon-copy duplicates.
 - Each ticket shall be used to document the location the disaster related debris was collected (i.e., street address) and the amount picked up, hauled, reduced and disposed of. Contractor(s) are responsible for ensuring all load and unit rate tickets capture location debris or work was completed, collection/disposal date, disposal location, percentage load call or measurement (either tons or percentage load call), and City authorized representative name and signature. No payment will be made by the City for incomplete and/or illegible load or unit rate tickets submitted for payment.
 - Load tickets will be issued by an authorized representative of the City at the collection site. The City authorized representative will complete the applicable portion of the load ticket, and provide all five copies to the vehicle operator. Upon arrival at the TDMS or City approved Final Disposal Site, the vehicle operator will present the five copies of the load ticket to the City authorized representative on site. Trucks with less than full capacities will be adjusted down by visual inspection. This determination will be made by the City authorized representative present at the TDMS or City approved Final Disposal Site. The City authorized representative will validate, enter the estimated debris quantity and sign the load ticket. The City will keep the original copy, two (2) copies will be given back to the vehicle operator and the remaining two (2) copies will be provided to the Contractor.
 - Loads of processed (e.g., chipped) debris being hauled from a TDMS to a City approved Final Disposal Site will follow the same load ticket procedures. A City authorized representative will initiate the load ticket at the TDMS. Another City authorized representative will validate and sign the ticket at the City approved Final Disposal Site.
 - The Contractor(s) shall give written notice of the location for work scheduled twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
- f. The format and details of the load tickets are subject to change and shall be provided by the City or Debris Monitoring Company. In any event, the Contractor shall ensure that load tickets meet the requirements of FEMA and other Federal, State, or local reimbursement agencies.
- g. Scope of service items that have rates based on one-way haul mileage shall have such mileage based on "as the crow flies" distance. The radius distance from each TDMS or final disposal site to the last loading location written on the load or haul-out ticket will be used to determine the mileage rate category. The City shall determine the mileage calculation method that is ultimately used. One-way mileage rates apply to the following sections within the statement of work:
 - ROW Vegetative Debris Removal

- ROW C&D Debris Removal
- Canal Debris Removal
- Haul-out of Reduced Debris to a City Approved Final Disposal Site

1.18 PAYMENT

- a. The City, or its authorized representative, will monitor, verify and document with load tickets or unit rate tickets the completion of all work, as defined in the scope of work. The Contractor(s) will be provided with copies of this documentation. These documents will be used by the Contractor as backup data for invoice submittals. Work not ticketed or not authorized by the City will not be approved for payment. Additionally, any ticket submitted for payment must be legible and properly completed. Tickets missing loading address, truck number, certified capacity, collection monitor signature, disposal site, load call or disposal monitor signature will not be paid, nor will the City be responsible for unpaid incomplete tickets.
- b. The City reserves the right to request additional invoice separation by debris type (C&D, vegetative debris, white goods, or other scope of service items), program (ROW collection, private property debris removal, etc.).
- c. Invoices shall be submitted to the City's authorized representative on a bi-weekly basis unless otherwise direct by the City. All invoices must be submitted with a hard copy of the invoice and an electronic copy (Microsoft Excel format) of the invoice detail. The invoice detail must consist of a tabular report listing all ticket information required by the City. Invoice detail submittals will be checked against City records. City records are the basis of all payment approvals. Only one hundred percent (100%) accurate and complete invoices shall be forwarded by the City authorized representative to the City for payment.
- d. A ten percent (10%) retainage will be withheld from each reconciled invoice until the end of the project. In order to recover the retainage, the Contractor(s) must successfully complete, and receive a letter of completion from the City, for all work zones. Retainage will be held until final reconciliation is complete. Portions of the retainage may be held by the City to repair damages caused by the Contractor(s) to public or private property.
- e. No separate payment will be made for mobilization and demobilization operations. These costs are to be included in the respective unit prices bid for debris removal and will not be adjusted based on the total amount of debris actually removed in the contract.
- f. The City of Pembroke Pines will not pay and/or reimburse any additional costs including, but not limited to, travel, mileage, lodging, meals, and other travel and subsistence expenses. Price submittals should be inclusive of all such expenses.
- g. The Contractor is responsible for payment to all subcontractors utilized for the services rendered within this scope of work. The Contractor shall execute release waivers with all subcontractors to release the City from payment to subcontractors directly. The release waivers for all subcontractors shall be provided to the City prior to final retainage release.

- h. Payment for disposal cost incurred by the Contractor(s) at City approved Final Disposal Sites will be made at the cost incurred by the Contractor. The City will either coordinate payment of disposal costs directly with the Final Disposal Site or require the Contractor to pay the disposal fees and then invoice the City. The Contractor(s) shall submit a copy of all invoice(s) received by the City approved Final Disposal Site, an electronic copy tabulating all scale or load tickets issued by the City approved Final Disposal Site, and proof of Contractor payment to the City approved Final Disposal Site. The City will not render payment for disposal costs until the Contractor submits applicable disposal site permits or site information for each authorized Final Disposal Site.
- i. Contractor(s) must submit a final invoice within thirty (30) days of completion of scope of work. Completion of scope of work will be acknowledged, in writing, by the City Debris Manager. The final invoice must be marked "FINAL INVOICE" and no additional payments will be made after the Contractor's final invoice.
- j. In the event any portion of this scope of work is to be funded by State or Federal funds, the Contractor will comply with all requirements of the state or federal government applicable to the use of the funds. The City will only pay for those items deemed eligible by FEMA or FHWA, unless the City otherwise agrees in writing.
- k. All debris clearance invoices will be audited for compliance with Federal record keeping and documentation requirements prior to payment.
- 1. Payment shall be tendered in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act, Part VII, Chapter 218, and Florida Statues.

1.19 FHWA-ER PROGRAM AND 2 CFR PART 200 CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

- a. The City intends to seek reimbursement from FHWA for the eligible debris removal performed on federal aid roads. Consequently, the City mandates compliance from the successful Contractor regarding the following:
 - i. FHWA Form 1273, titled Standard Federal-aid Provisions. FHWA Form 1273 will be included in the final contract.
 - ii. Buy America Requirements
 - iii. 49 CFR Part 26, Disadvantage Business Enterprise Program
- b. American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)
- c. Convict Labor Prohibition
- d. All invoices must conform to the billing methodology specified in the contract. Failure to properly invoice will result in non-payment of invoices.
 - i. Disaster related purchases (those made with a special "disaster purchase order form" shall never be co-mingled with regular invoices.
 - ii. All disaster invoices shall include the location where delivered or where used, if appropriate.

- e. All contractor's project invoices will be audited prior to payment to ensure compliance with Federal documentation requirements:
 - i. Time cards.
 - ii. Daily work reports for every employee, by each separate FEMA category of work
 - iii. Daily equipment use, by each separate FEMA category of work.
 - iv. List of all supplies and materials used, by each separate FEMA category of work.
 - v. Includes both prime and sub-contractors.
- f. All work must be properly grouped according to FEMA damage categories as specified in the contract.
- g. FHWA-ER and 200 C.F.R. Program contract requirements are subject to any changes provided by FEMA or FHWA during the term of the contract. Based on the current guidance, FHWA will only reimburse the City for the initial collection, hauling and tipping fee, if applicable, of eligible debris. Debris reduction operations are not eligible for reimbursement unless the debris is being reduced as part of a rolling pickup operation. As a result, the FHWA-ER eligible debris that is collected during the first pass shall be hauled to the nearest Final Disposal Site unless otherwise directed by the City.

1.20 TIME AND MATERIAL CONTRACTS IF REQUIRED

As may be necessary under this Agreement, whenever separate Time and Materials contracts for any tasks not specified in this document are required, the following requirements shall apply:

- a. Unless otherwise specified in writing, no Time and Materials contract shall exceed seventy (70) hours of work. Any work done beyond seventy (70) hours is at the Contractor's risk.
- b. All Time and Materials contracts must have a not-to-exceed cost cap which the Contractor exceeds at their own risk.
- c. All Time and Materials contracts are subject to ongoing monitoring by either City staff and/or an independent third party monitoring firm.
- d. All Time and Materials contracts listing equipment shall include FEMA Equipment Rate Sheet four (4) digit codes as reference.

1.21 CHANGE ORDERS

- a. The City, without invalidating this Agreement, may order additions, deletions or revisions to the Work. A written Amendment, Change Order or Work Change Directive shall authorize such additions, deletions or revisions.
- b. All Change Orders which, individually or when cumulatively added to amounts authorized pursuant to prior Change Orders for this Project, increase the cost of the Work to the City or which extend the time for completion, must be formally

- authorized and approved by the appropriate City authority prior to their issuance and before Work may begin.
- c. No claim against the City for extra Work in furtherance of a Change Order shall be allowed unless prior written City approval pursuant to this section has been obtained.
- d. The Contract Price and Contract Time shall be changed only by Change Order or written Amendment.
- e. The Project Manager shall prepare Proposed Change Orders on forms provided by the City. When submitted for approval, they shall carry the signature of the Public Services Director, the City Manager, and the Contractor.
- f. If the City and the Contractor are unable to agree as to the extent, if any, of an adjustment in the Contract Price or an adjustment of the Contract times that should be allowed as a result of a Work Change Directive, a claim may be made therefore.
- g. The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract times with respect to any Work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified and supplemented.
- h. If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents is required by the provisions of any bond to be given to a surety, the giving of any such notice will be the Contractor's responsibility and the amount of each applicable bond shall be adjusted accordingly.
- i. Any claim for adjustment in the Contract Price or time shall be based upon written notice delivered by the party making the claim to the other parties and to the Engineer/Project Manager not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the occurrence or event giving rise to the claims and stating the general nature of the claim. No claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the contract time will be valid if not submitted in accordance with this Paragraph.
- j. The cost or credit to the City from a change in the Work shall be determined by one or more of the following ways:
 - 1) By a Cost Analysis process to be performed on all change orders. The cost analysis for all change orders will include a separate determination of profit for each change order requested.
 - When only nominal quantities are to be changed, change order may be determined by existing unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon. For substantive changes in quantities, Contractor shall be required to perform a cost analysis as required in the previous paragraph.

1.22 FINAL PROJECT CLOSE OUT

Upon final inspection of the project by the City, the Contractor(s) shall submit a detailed description of all debris management activities, to include the total volume, by type of debris hauled and or disposed.



Services not specifically identified in any contract derived from this request may be added to the contract upon mutual consent of the contracting parties.

1.23 DISTRIBUTION OF WORK

The City reserves the right to activate more than one contractor to provide the debris services outlined in this proposal. The City may also revise the distribution of services provided or work areas (such as zones) at any time during the activation of a contract developed though this proposal.

1.24 CONTRACT TERM

The successful contractor shall be awarded a contract for three (3) years with the option to renew the contract for two (2) additional three (3) year periods. Options for renewal will only be exercised upon mutual written agreement. Unit prices will remain firm for the first year and may be adjusted according to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for each subsequent year.

1.25 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The following documents will need to be completed, scanned and submitted through www.bidsync.com as part of the bidder's submittal. The proposer interested in responding to this solicitation must provide the information requested below. Submittals that do not respond completely too all requirements specified herein may be considered non-responsive and eliminated from the process.

All proposals shall address and be tabbed/indexed as outlined below:

Title Page:

List the following:

Subject: RFP # AD-18-03 "Disaster and Debris Management Services"

- 1. Date
- 2. Name of the Firm
- 3. Contact Person (including title) authorized to represent your firm
 - i. Note: This contact person shall also be listed on Attachment A: Contact Information Form
- 4. Telephone Number
- 5. Email Address

Tab 1 - Table of Contents:

Include a clear identification of the material included in the proposal by tab number and page number.

Tab 2 - Letter of Interest:

Limit to two (2) pages.

- 1. This letter shall summarize in a brief and concise manner that the Contractor understands the scope of work and render a positive commitment to perform the work in a professional and timely manner and a description of the firm including:
 - a. State that all terms, conditions, and addendums of the RFP are understood and acknowledged by the undersigned; and
 - b. Include the size, range of activities, financial history, strength, stability, experience, honors, awards, recognitions, etc.
 - c. Summary of abilities and experience of the firms' professional personnel
 - d. Summary of past performance of the firm on similar projects
 - e. Recent, current, and projected workload of the firm, and availability and access to the firms' top level management personnel.
 - f. A brief statement must be included which explains why your proposal would be the most effective and beneficial to the City.

Tab 3 - Qualifications and Experience (25 points):

Provide specific examples of similar contracts delivered by the proposed team members. Provide details on related projects (preferably where the team was the same). References should be capable of explaining and confirming your firm's capacity to successfully complete the scope of work out-lined herein. Please clearly address all of the items shown below in this section:

- 1. Confirm that the Proposer has current and relevant past performance in Disaster Debris Removal Services with a minimum of seven (7) years of experience in regards to the attached scope of work, service area, and amount of debris collected.
 - a. Attachment K: References Form
- 2. Details of References should include the following:
 - a. Name and location of the project
 - b. Provide a detailed description of the comparable projects (similar in scope of services to those requested herein).
 - c. Nature of the firm's responsibility on the project
 - d. Project owner's representative name, address, phone number, and e-mail address
 - e. Project duration and the date the project was completed or is anticipated to be completed.
 - f. Size of project including number of residents
 - g. Cost of project
 - h. Work for which staff was responsible
 - i. Contract Type
 - j. The results/deliverables of the project

- 3. Demonstration that the Proposer, or the principals assigned to the project, successfully completed services similar to those specified in the scope of services to at least three (3) government entities with a population of at least 150,000 as the Primary Contractor. For each reference, include the full name, title, telephone number, fax number and valid email address of a representative for whom the engagement was taken who can verify satisfactory performance.
- 4. Provide list of all government agencies for which the Proposer provided emergency disaster recovery services within the last six (6) years. Provide project/event title and brief description of the work completed. Proposer should note whether it was part of a joint venture and, if so, whether it was the Primary or Secondary Contractor.
- 5. Identify the debris monitoring firm(s) that you have worked with in the past five (5) years.
 - a. Please supply contact names, title, telephone number, fax number and email address from these firms that will be able to verify the quality and accuracy of the documents that they have reviewed from your firm.
- 6. Demonstrate that the Proposer has experience performing work as a primary contractor on Disaster Debris Management projects exceeding two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per event.
- 7. Describe the firm's previous experience with State and Federal reimbursement programs; including, but not limited to: of FEMA, FHWA, NRCS and any other applicable Federal or State agencies associated with funding of debris removal and recovery efforts.
- 8. Demonstrate that the firm possesses all appropriate Contractors and professional licenses required to do business in the State of Florida.
 - a. If a Proposer is a corporation, it must be certified with the Florida Secretary of State and have a corporate status in good standing, and in the case of out-of-state corporation, they must present evidence of authority to do business in the State of Florida.
 - b. Attach copies of any licenses, certifications, or permits held by your firm that may be applicable to the services requested within this solicitation.
- 9. List of all pending lawsuits involving the corporation, partnership or individuals with more than ten percent (10%) interest that are related to the services to be provided under this RFP.
 - a. List of all judgments from lawsuits in the last three (3) years involving the corporation, partnership or individuals.

Tab 4 - Ability (25 points):

Please clearly address all of the items shown below in this section:

- 1. The ability, capacity, skill, and organization of the Proposer to perform and support the needs and objectives within the scope of work as proposed.
- 2. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience of proposer.
- 3. **Availability:** The schedule and availability of the proposer; to include response time.

- 4. **Organizational Chart:** Include organizational chart with names of all persons or entities serving or intending to serve as principals in the Contractors firm. Identify each principal of the firm and any other "key personnel", such as project managers, supervisors, and contact personnel who will be professionally associated with the services to be provided.
- 5. **Personnel:** A list of personnel assigned to the City in the event of contract activation. The list shall include, but is not limited to:
 - a. Contact persons, including telephone numbers and email addresses
 - b. Project Manager
 - c. Operations Manager
 - d. Other key personnel assigned to the project/this Agreement
 - e. Identify Personnel Ability and Experience: Provide a list of personnel assigned to the City in the event of contract activation. Brief resumes of these individuals are requested and highly encouraged stating their credentials, education, experience, certifications, and all pertinent information to demonstrate capabilities. Proposer will provide experienced staff. Certification or active involvement with disaster preparedness agencies is highly desirable such as: NIMS certification, FEMA Region IV, FEMA National Advisory Council, FEMA National Training Programs (NTP), FEMA Center for Domestic Preparedness (CDP), FEMA Emergency Management Institute (EMI), Florida State Emergency Response Team (SERT), and/or Florida Governor's Hurricane Conference training/instructor.
- 6. **Equipment:** Identify Proposer's current inventory of heavy equipment, vehicles and other related equipment and their current conditions that would be dedicated and utilized for the City's objective. A full list shall include descriptions, sizes and age of the equipment. In addition, please identify the equipment that will be provided directly from the proposer and the equipment that will be provided by sub-contractors along with the location that this equipment will be normally stored prior to an emergency declaration. For example, will the equipment be stored within the City, County, State, Other States, etc.
- 7. **Internal vs. Brokered Services:** Please identify the amount of services that the proposer will provide directly and the amount that will be provided through their subcontractors. In addition, please identify the location of the proposer and their sub-contractors, along with the ability of the proposer and their sub-contractors to respond to the City, in the event of an emergency, from their location. Furthermore, please identify the subcontractors' abilities and qualifications as related to the contract's specific requirements and their ability to accomplish the work specified herein.
- 8. **Financial Stability:**
 - a. Each Contractor shall certify and provide a statement that it is financially stable and has the necessary resources, human and financial, to provide the services at the level required by the City. Each Contractor shall be prepared to supply a financial statement upon request. If a subcontractor or joint venture arrangement is being proposed, provide similar information for those participants in the Proposal. Provide clear and sufficient

- information that will provide insight to the City about the financial qualifications, fitness, and stability of the Contractor.
- b. This section shall also include a letter from the Contractor's surety company providing proof of bonding capability large enough to handle the potential debris management operations up to \$1,000,000 or 100% of the contract value, whichever is greater, annually. This letter shall be valid for one year from the anniversary date of the start of the agreement, and shall be resubmitted for validity to the City every year thereafter throughout the initial contract term, and for each year of any subsequent contract renewal option.
- 9. **Workload:** The Current and projected workload of the proposer; to include current contracts with other government entities. List contract(s) of similar scope currently in effect within the State of Florida. Contract list should include: the Name of the Municipality/County, date the Contract was initially executed, date of subsequent renewal(s), and Expiration Date.
 - a. Provide reasonable assurance that such obligations will not preclude Contractor from meeting its obligations under this contract.
 - b. Plan for managing multiple Florida-based debris management/monitoring contracts.
 - c. Proposer must have provided services as a primary disaster debris monitoring consultant similar to those required in this RFP to at least one (1) jurisdiction of at least 150,000 people.
 - d. Identify what contractual commitments your key subcontractors have in the Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach County area.

<u>Tab 5 – Project Understanding and Technical Approach (20 points):</u>

Please clearly address all of the items shown below in this section:

- 1. Provide a concise description of the approach and process the Contractor will employ to successfully complete the work to be performed to include mobilization, operational plans, work procedures, processing systems and any specific staffing or equipment resources that will be employed by the Contractor to support the needs and objective of the City. The technical approach should also outline the following:
 - a. Ability to manage activation of multiple contracts
 - b. Methods for mobilization/demobilization
 - c. Operational plans and work procedures
 - d. Documenting and resolving damages
 - e. Invoicing and data management
- 2. Provide a statement demonstrating an understanding of the services and support required by this RFP. State how the Contractor will approach the project and the methodology to be used to perform the services described in the Scope of Services.

- 3. Completed Disclosure of Sub-Contractors: Include a Sub-Contracting plan that identifies items such as a description of percentage of work to be subcontracted.
- 4. Typical Debris Management Site (TDMS) Safety Plan and Operational Plan: Provide a description of the firm's typical TDMS safety plan and operational plan. Any changes to the site safety plan or operational plan must be provided to the City and are subject to City approval. The City also reserves the right to request changes to the Contractor(s) site safety plan or operational plan.
- 5. Describe Contractor's ability to avoid and/or mitigate unforeseen problems such as equipment failure and staffing shortages. This includes, but is not limited to ongoing maintenance programs, availability of parts and personnel for field repairs, resources for backup personnel and equipment, and other programs and approaches that would allow the Contractor to meet the City's needs and objectives in adverse conditions.

<u>Tab 6 – Project Cost (30 points):</u>

- 1. Attachment A: Contact Information Form
 - a. Attached is contact information form (Attachment A) where the vendor will enter their contact information and complete the proposal checklist. The Contact information form shall be electronically signed by the contact person authorized to represent the contractor. This form must be completed and submitted through www.bidsync.com as part of the bidder's submittal. The vendor must provide their pricing through the designated lines items listed on the BidSync website.
 - b. Please note vendors should be registered on BidSync under the name of the organization that they are operating as and it should match the organization name on the documents that they are submitting and utilizing when responding to the solicitation.
 - c. The contact information form should contain an electronic signature of the authorized representative of the Proposer along with the address and telephone number for communications regarding the Proposal.
 - d. Proposals by corporations should be executed in the corporate name by the President or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate address and state of incorporation must also be shown.
 - e. Proposals by partnerships should be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner whose title and the official address of the partnership must be shown.

Tab 7 – Exceptions:

1. Exceptions – clearly describe any exceptions the Contractor may have in regards to any requirements stated in the RFP document or associated addendums.

Tab 8 – Other Completed Documents:

- 1. Attachment B: Vendor Information Form and a W-9
 - a. In addition to the Vendor Information Form, please ensure that you provide the completed W-9 (Rev. November 2017), as previously dated versions of this form will delay the processing of any payments to the awarded vendor.
- 2. Attachment C: Non-Collusive Affidavit
- 3. Attachment D: Sworn Statement on Public Entity Crimes Form
- 4. Attachment E: Vendor Drug-Free Workplace Certification Form
- 5. Attachment F: Homeland Security's E-Verify System Affirmation Statement
- 6. Attachment G: Equal Benefits Certification Form
- 7. Attachment H: Proposer's Completed Qualification Statement
- 8. Attachment M: Certification Regarding Lobbying, Debarment, Suspension, Etc.
- 9. Standard Form LLL: Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying (*if applicable, see Attachment M for details*)

Tab 9 - Additional Information:

Please provide any additional information that you deem necessary to complete your proposal in this section, if it has not been requested in another section.

1.26 EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS & PROCESS OF SELECTION

- A. Staff will evaluate all responsive proposals received from proposers who meet or exceed the bid requirements contained in the RFP. Evaluations shall be based upon the information and references contained in the proposals as submitted. As such, the Proposal should be as comprehensive as possible; clearly describing the details of services that the Proposer intends to provide.
- B. The City will convene an Evaluation Committee and brief its members on the scope of the project and the services required. The Evaluation Committee will evaluate proposals based on the following criteria

| Criteria | Points |
|--|------------|
| Qualifications and Experience | 25 points |
| Ability | 25 points |
| Project Understanding and Technical Approach | 20 points |
| Project Cost | 30 points |
| Total Points | 100 points |

C. The Evaluation Committee shall have the option to short-list the proposers based on the criteria listed above. Then the Evaluation Committee may schedule a second meeting for the firms to make presentations and answer questions of clarification as part of its evaluation. As part of this process, the firms shall have officials of the appropriate management level present and representing the firm. The project manager should be available. The firm shall be prepared to present an overall briefing regarding the manner in which the contractual obligations will be accomplished.

D. The Evaluation Committee will make a recommendation to the City Commission for award of contract. The contract shall be awarded to the most responsive/responsible proposer(s) whose proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration the evaluation criteria. The City intends to award a primary, secondary and tertiary firm to ensure that the City has coverage during a disaster.

1.27 TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

| Event | Time &/or Date |
|---|-------------------------------|
| Issuance of Solicitation (Posting Date) | April 24, 2018 |
| Question Due Date | May 7, 2018 |
| Anticipated Date of Issuance for the | May 9 2018 |
| Addenda with Questions and Answers | |
| Proposals will be accepted until | 2:00 p.m. on May 15, 2018 |
| Proposals will be opened at | 2:30 p.m. on May 15, 2018 |
| Evaluation of Proposals by Evaluation | May 21, 2018 – May 24, 2018 |
| Committee | |
| Recommendation of Contractor to | June 6, 2018 or June 20, 2018 |
| City Commission award | |

1.28 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

Bids/proposals <u>must be submitted electronically</u> at <u>www.bidsync.com</u> on or before 2:00 p.m. on May 15, 2018.

Please note vendors should be registered on BidSync under the name of the organization that they are operating as and it should match the organization name on the documents that they are submitting and utilizing when responding to the solicitation.

The vendor must provide their pricing through the designated lines items listed on the BidSync website. In addition, the vendor must complete any webforms on the BidSync website and provide any additional information requested throughout this solicitation. Any additional information requested in the solicitation should be scanned and uploaded. <u>Unless otherwise specified, the City requests for vendors to upload their documents as one (1) PDF document in the order that is outline in the bid package.</u>

The City recommends for proposers to submit their proposals as soon as they are ready to do so. Please allow ample time to submit your proposals on the BidSync website. Proposals may be modified or withdrawn prior to the deadline for submitting Proposals. BidSync Support is happy to help you with submitting your proposal and to ensure that you are submitting your proposals correctly, but we ask that you contact their support line at 1-800-990-9339 with ample time before the bid closing date and time.

PLEASE DO NOT SUBMIT ANY PROPOSALS VIA MAIL, E-MAIL OR FAX.



SECTION 2 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities from any and all liability, losses or damages, including attorneys' fees and costs of defense, which the CITY or its officers, employees, agents or instrumentalities may incur as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of actions or proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance of this Agreement by the CONTRACTOR or its employees, agents, servants, partners principals or subcontractors. The CONTRACTOR shall pay all claims and losses in connection therewith and shall investigate and defend all claims, suits or actions of any kind or nature in the name of the CITY, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay all costs, judgments, and attorney's fees which may issue thereon. The CONTRACTOR expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Agreement or otherwise provided by the CONTRACTOR shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the CITY or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as herein provided.

CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the CITY nor shall the CONTRACTOR allow any subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until all similar such insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained and similarly approved.

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the City's Risk Manager prior to the commencement of this Agreement. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The insurance company shall be rated no less than "A" as to management, and no less than "Class VI" as to financial strength according to the latest edition of Best's Insurance Guide published by A.M. Best Company.

Policies shall be endorsed to provide the CITY thirty (30) days notice of cancellation, material change or non-renewal of policies required under the contract. If the carrier will not agree to this notification, the CONTRACTOR or its insurance broker shall notify the CITY of any cancellation or reduction in coverage within seven days of receipt of insurer's notification of cancellation or reduction in coverage.

Insurance shall be in force until all obligations required to be fulfilled under the terms of the Agreement are satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the CITY. In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then in that event, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension thereunder is in effect. The CONTRACTOR shall not commence nor continue to provide any services pursuant to this Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect. CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any lapses in service resulting from a gap in insurance coverage.

The insurance requirements specified in this Agreement are minimum requirements and in no way reduce any liability the CONTRACTOR has assumed in the indemnification/hold harmless section(s) of this Agreement.



2.1 REQUIRED INSURANCE

- A. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE including, but not limited to: coverage for premises & operations, personal & advertising injury, products & completed operations, Liability assumed under an Insured Contract (including tort liability of another assumed in a business contract), and independent contractors. Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis, with limits of liability no less than:
 - 1. Each Occurrence Limit \$1,000,000
 - 2. Fire Damage Limit (Damage to rented premises) \$100,000
 - 3. Personal & Advertising Injury Limit \$1,000,000
 - 4. General Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000
 - 5. Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000 (mostly for construction or equipment sold to the CITY)

Products & Completed Operations Coverage shall be maintained for two (2) years after the final payment under this contract. (Increase to 10 years for construction projects) (For construction projects also include: Designated Construction Project(s) General Aggregate Limit)

The City of Pembroke Pines must be shown as an additional insured with respect to this coverage. City's Additional Insured status shall extend to any coverage beyond the minimum requirements for limits of liability found herein.

- B. WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE covering all employees, and/or volunteers of the CONTRACTOR engaged in the performance of the scope of work associated with this Agreement. In the case any work is sublet, the CONTRACTOR shall require the subcontractors similarly to provide Workers Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the CONTRACTOR. Coverage for the CONTRACTOR and his subcontractors shall be in accordance with applicable state and/or federal laws that may apply to Workers' Compensation Insurance with limits of liability no less than:
 - 1. Workers' Compensation : Coverage A Statutory
 - 2. Employers Liability: Coverage B \$500,000 Each Accident

\$500,000 Disease – Policy Limit \$500,000 Disease – Each Employee

If CONTRACTOR claims to be exempt from this requirement, CONTRACTOR shall provide CITY proof of such exemption along with a written request for CITY to exempt CONTRACTOR, written on CONTRACTOR letterhead.

Coverage shall be included for injuries or claims under the USL&H or Jones Act, when applicable.

C. AUTO LIABILITY INSURANCE covering all owned, leased, hired, non-owned and employee non-owned vehicles used in connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, with a combined single limit of liability for bodily injury and property damage no less than:

- Any Auto (Symbol 1)
 Combined Single Limit (Each Accident) \$1,000,000
- Hired Autos (Symbol 8)
 Combined Single Limit (Each Accident) \$1,000,000
- 3. Non-Owned Autos (Symbol 9)
 Combined Single Limit (Each Accident) \$1,000,000

If work under this Agreement includes transportation of hazardous materials, policy shall include pollution liability coverage equivalent to that provided by ISO pollution liability-broadened coverage for auto endorsement CA9948 and the Motor Carrier Act endorsement MCS90.

- **D. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY/ERRORS & OMISSIONS INSURANCE**, when applicable, with a limit of liability no less than \$1,000,000 per wrongful act. This coverage shall be maintained for a period of no less than three (3) years after final payment of the contract. (Increase to 10 years for construction projects)
- E. ENVIRONMENTAL/POLLUTION LIABILITY shall be required with a limit of no less than \$1,000,000 per wrongful act whenever work under this Agreement involves potential losses caused by pollution conditions. Coverage shall include: Contractor's completed operations as well as sudden and gradual pollution conditions. If coverage is written on a claims-made basis, coverage shall be maintained for a period of no less than three (3) years after final payment of the contract. The City of Pembroke Pines must be shown as an additional insured with respect to this coverage. Furthermore, the CITY'S Additional Insured status shall extend to any coverage beyond the minimum requirements for limits of liability found herein.
- F. CYBER LIABILITY including Network Security and Privacy Liability when applicable, with a limit of liability no less than \$1,000,000 per loss. Coverage shall include liability arising from: theft, dissemination and/or use of confidential information stored or transmitted in electronic form, unauthorized access to, use of, or tampering with computer systems, including hacker attacks or inability of an authorized third party to gain access to your services, including denial of service, and the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise causing damage to, a customer's or third person's computer, computer system, network, or similar computer-related property and the data, software and programs thereon. This coverage shall be maintained for a period of no less than three (3) years after final payment of the contract. The City of Pembroke Pines must be shown as an additional insured with respect to this coverage. Furthermore, the CITY'S Additional Insured status shall extend to any coverage beyond the minimum requirements for limits of liability found herein.
- **G. CRIME COVERAGE** when applicable, shall include employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, and computer fraud in an amount of no less than \$1,000,000 per loss. If Contractor is physically located on the City's premises, a third-party fidelity coverage extension shall apply.
- **H. BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE** shall be "All Risk" for one hundred percent (100%) of the completed value of the project with a deductible of not more than five percent (5%) for Named Windstorm and \$20,000 per claim for all other perils. The Builder's Risk Insurance

shall include interests of the CITY, the CONTRACTOR and subcontractors of the project. The CONTRACTOR shall include a separate line item for all costs associated with the Builder's Risk Insurance Coverage for the project. The CITY reserves the right at its sole discretion to utilize the CONTRACTOR'S Builder's Risk Insurance or for the CITY to purchase its own Builder's Risk Insurance for the Project. Prior to the CONTRACTOR purchasing the Builder's Risk insurance for the project, the CONTRACTOR shall allow the CITY the opportunity to analyze the CONTRACTOR'S coverage and determine who shall purchase the coverage. Should the CITY utilize the CONTRACTOR'S Builder's Risk Insurance, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all deductibles. If the CITY chooses to purchase the Builder's Risk Coverage on the project, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY with a change order deduct for all premiums and costs associated with the Builder's Risk insurance in their schedule. Should the CITY choose to utilize the CITY'S Builder's Risk Program, the CITY shall be responsible for the Named Windstorm Deductible and the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the All Other Perils Deductible.

I. SEXUAL ABUSE may not be excluded from any policy for Agreements involving any interaction with minors or seniors.

2.2 REQUIRED ENDORSEMENTS

- 1. The City of Pembroke Pines shall be named as an Additional Insured on each of the General Liability polices required herein
- 2. Waiver of all Rights of Subrogation against the CITY
- 3. 30 Day Notice of Cancellation or Non-Renewal to the CITY
- 4. CONTRACTORs' policies shall be Primary & Non-Contributory
- 5. All policies shall contain a "severability of interest" or "cross liability" liability clause without obligation for premium payment of the CITY
- 6. The City of Pembroke Pines shall be named as a Loss Payee on all Property and/or Inland Marine Policies as their interest may appear.

CONTRACTOR shall name the CITY, as an additional insured on each of the General Liability policies required herein and shall hold the CITY, its agents, officers and employees harmless on account of claims for damages to persons, property or premises arising out of the services provided hereunder. Any insurance required of the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement must also be required by any subcontractor in the same limits and with all requirements as provided herein, including naming the CITY as an additional insured, in any work is subcontracted unless such subcontractor is covered by the protection afforded by the CONTRACTOR and provided proof of such coverage is provided to CITY. The CONTRACTOR and any subcontractors shall maintain such policies during the term of this Agreement.

The CITY reserves the right to require any other additional types of insurance coverage and/or higher limits of liability it deems necessary based on the nature of work being performed under this Contract.



<u>SECTION 3 - GENERAL TERMS &</u> CONDITIONS

3.1 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Before submitting a Proposal, each Proposer should (a) consider federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect cost or performance of the work, (b) study and carefully correlate the Proposer's observations with the Proposal Documents; and (c) notify the Purchasing Manager of all conflicts, errors and discrepancies, if any, in the Proposal Documents.

The Proposer, by and through the submission of a Proposal, agrees that Proposer shall be held responsible for having familiarized themselves with the nature and extent of the work and any local conditions that may affect the work to be done and the services, equipment, materials, parts and labor required.

3.2 CONFLICT OF INSTRUCTIONS

If a conflict exists between the General Conditions and Instructions stated herein and specific conditions and instructions contained in specifications, the specifications shall govern.

3.3 ADDENDA or ADDENDUM

A formal solicitation may require an Addendum to be issued. An addendum in some way may clarify, correct or change the original solicitation (i.e. due date/time, specifications, terms, conditions, line item). Vendors submitting a proposal should check the BidSync website for any addenda issued. Vendors are cautioned not to consider verbal modifications to the solicitation, as the addendum issued through BidSync will be the only official method whereby changes will be made.

3.4 INTERPRETATIONS AND QUESTIONS

If the Proposer is in doubt as to the meaning of any of the Proposal Documents, is of the opinion Conditions that the Specifications contain errors contradictions or reflect omissions, or has any question concerning the conditions and specifications, the Proposer shall submit a question for interpretation or clarification. The City requires all questions relating to the solicitation be entered through the "Ask a Question" option tab available on the BidSync website. Responses questions will be provided online at www.bidsync.com. Such request must be received by the "Question Due Date" stated in the solicitation. Questions received after "Question Due Date" shall not be answered. Interpretations or clarifications in response to such questions will be issued via BidSync. The issuance of a response via BidSync is considered an Addendum and shall be the only official method whereby such an interpretation or clarification will be made.

BidSync Support is also available to assist proposers with submitting their proposal and to ensure that proposers are submitting their proposals correctly. Proposers should ensure that they contact they BidSync support line at 1-800-990-9339 with ample time before the bid closing date and time.

For all other questions related to this solicitation, please contact the Purchasing Division at purchasing@ppines.com.

3.5 RULES, REGULATIONS, LAWS, ORDINANCES and LICENSES

The awarded contractor shall observe and obey all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations of the federal, state, and CITY, which may be applicable to the service being provided. The awarded firm shall have or be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits or licenses required, if necessary, in order to provide this service.

Bidder warrants by submittal that prices quoted here are in conformity with the latest federal price guidelines, if any.

3.6 WARRANTIES FOR USAGE

Whenever a bid is sought, seeking a source of supply for a specified time for materials or service, the quantities or usage shown are estimated only. No guarantee or warranty is given or implied by the City as to the total amount that may or may not be purchased from any resulting contracts. These quantities are for bidders information only and will be used for tabulation and presentation of bid.

3.7 BRAND NAMES

If and wherever in the specifications a brand name, make, name of manufacturer, trade name, or vendor catalog number is mentioned, it is for the purpose of establishing a grade or quality of material only. Since the City does not wish to rule out other competition and equal brands or makes, the phrase "OR EQUAL" is added. However, if a product other than that specified is bid, Bidders shall indicate on their proposal and clearly state the proposed substitution and deviation. It is the vendor's responsibility to provide any necessary documentation and samples within their bid submittal to prove that the product is equal to that specified. Such samples are to be furnished before the date of bid opening. unless otherwise specified. Additional evidence in the form of documentation and samples may be requested if the proposed brand is other than that specified. The City retains the right to determine if the proposed brand shall be considered as an approved equivalent or not.

3.8 QUALITY

All materials used for the manufacture or construction of any supplies, materials, or equipment covered by this bid shall be new, the latest model, of the best quality, and highest grade workmanship, unless otherwise noted.

3.9 SAMPLES

Samples, when requested, must be furnished before, or at the bid opening, unless otherwise specified, and delivered free of expense to the City and if not used in testing or destroyed, will upon request within thirty (30) days of bid award be returned at the bidders expense.

3.10 DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Neither the City nor its representatives shall be liable for any expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, submission or presentation of a Bid in response to this solicitation. All information in the Bid shall be provided at no cost to the City.

3.11 PRICING

Prices should be stated in units of quantity specified in the bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in computing the amount of the bid, the unit prices quoted will govern.

Bidder warrants by virtue of bidding that prices, terms, and conditions quoted in his bid will be firm for acceptance for a period of ninety (90) days from date of bid opening unless otherwise stated by the City or bidder.

3.12 DELIVERY POINT

All items shall be delivered F.O.B. destination, and delivery cost and charges included in the bid price. Failure to do so may be cause for rejection of bid.

3.13 TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The City is exempt from Florida Sales and Federal Excise taxes on direct purchase of tangible property.

3.14 CONTRACT TIME

By virtue of the submission of the Proposal, Proposer agrees and fully understands that the completion time of the work of the Contract is an essential and material condition of the Contract and that time is of the essence. The Successful Proposer agrees that all work shall be prosecuted regularly, diligently and uninterrupted at such rate of progress as will ensure full completion thereof within the time specified. Failure to complete the work within the time period specified shall be considered a default.

In addition, time will be of the essence for any orders placed as a result of this bid. Purchaser reserves the right to cancel such orders, or part thereof, without obligation if delivery is not made at the time(s) or place(s) specified.

3.15 COPYRIGHT OR PATENT RIGHTS

Bidder warrants that there have been no violations of copyrights or patent rights in manufacturing, producing, or selling other goods shipped or ordered as a result of this bid, and seller agrees to hold the purchaser harmless from any and all liability, loss or expense occasioned by such violation.

3.16 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

"A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a supplier, subcontractor, or contractor. consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list."

The Public Entity Crime Affidavit Form, attached to this solicitation, includes

documentation that shall be executed by an individual authorized to bind the Proposer. The Proposer further understands and accepts that any contract issued as a result of this solicitation shall be either voidable or subject to immediate termination by the City. In the event there is any misrepresentation or lack of compliance with the mandates of Section 287.133 or Section 287.134, respectively, Florida Statutes. The City in the event in such termination, shall not incur any liability to the Bidder for any goods, services or materials furnished.

3.17 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The award of any contract hereunder is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. Proposers must disclose with their Proposal the name of any officer, director, partner, proprietor, associate or agent who is also an officer or employee of CITY or any of its agencies. Further, all Proposers must disclose the name of any officer or employee of CITY who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Proposer's firm or any of its branches or affiliate companies.

3.18 FACILITIES

The City reserves the right to inspect the Bidder's facilities at any time with prior notice.

3.19 ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

CITY reserves the right to consider Proposer's history of citations and/or violations of environmental regulations in determining a Proposer's responsibility, and further reserves the right to declare a Proposer not responsible if the history of violations warrant such determination. Proposer shall submit with the Proposal, a complete history of all citations and/or violations, notices and dispositions thereof. non-submission of anv documentation shall be deemed to be an affirmation by the Proposer that there are no citations or violations. Proposer shall notify CITY immediately of notice of any citation or violation that Proposer may receive after the Proposal opening date and during the time of performance of any contract awarded to Proposers.

3.20 SIGNATURE REQUIRED

All proposals must be signed with the firm name and by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm by his signature. FAILURE TO PROPERLY SIGN PROPOSAL SHALL INVALIDATE SAME, AND IT MAY NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD.

The individual executing this Bid on behalf of the Company warrant to the City that the Company is authorized to do business in the State of Florida, is in good standing and that Company possesses all of the required licenses and certificates of competency required by the State of Florida and Broward County to provide the goods or perform the services herein described.

The signed bid shall be considered an offer on the part of the bidder or contractor, which offer shall be deemed accepted upon approval by the City Commission of the City of Pembroke Pines and in case of default on the part of the bidder or contractor after such acceptance, the City of Pembroke Pines may take such action as it deems appropriate including legal action for damages or specific performance.

3.21 MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATION

The City of Pembroke Pines reserves the right to request from bidder separate manufacturer certification of all statements made in the proposal.

3.22 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL

The City recommends for proposers to submit their proposals as soon as they are ready to do so. Please allow ample time to submit your proposals on the BidSync website. Proposals may be modified or withdrawn prior to the deadline for submitting Proposals.

3.23 PUBLIC BID; BID OPENING AND GENERAL EXEMPTIONS

All submittals received by the deadline will be recorded, and will subsequently be publicly opened on the same business day at 2:30 p.m. at the office of the City Clerk, 601 City Center Way, Pembroke Pines, FL.

All Proposals received from Proposers in response to the solicitation will become the property of CITY and will not be returned to the Proposers. In the event of Contract award, all documentation produced as part of the Contract shall become the exclusive property of CITY. Proposers are requested to identify specifically any information contained in their Proposals which they consider confidential and/or proprietary and which they believe to be exempt from disclosure, citing specifically the applicable exempting law.

Pursuant to Section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes, sealed bids, proposals, or replies received by a Florida public agency shall remain exempt from disclosure until an intended decision is announced or until 30 days from the opening, whichever is earlier.

Therefore, bidders will not be able to procure a copy of their competitor's bids until an intended decision is reached or 30 days has elapsed since the time of the bid opening.

However, pursuant to Section 255.0518 of the Florida Statutes, when opening sealed bids that are received pursuant to a competitive solicitation for **construction or repairs on a public building or public work**, the entity shall:

- (a) Open the sealed bids at a public meeting.
- (b) Announce at that meeting the name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid.

(c) Make available upon request the name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid.

For solicitations that are **not** for "**construction or repairs on a public building or public work**" the City shall not reveal the prices submitted in the bids until an intended decision is announced or until 30 days from the opening, whichever is earlier.

3.24 RESERVATIONS FOR REJECTION AND AWARD

The City of Pembroke Pines reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids or parts of bids, to waive irregularities and technicalities, and to request rebids. The City also reserves the right to award a contract on such items(s) or service(s) the City deems will best serve its interests. All bids shall be awarded to the most responsive/responsible bidder, provided the (City) may for good cause reject any bid or part thereof. It further reserves the right to award a contract on a split order basis, or such combinations as shall best serve the interests of the City unless otherwise No premiums, rebates or specified. gratuities permitted, either with, prior to, or after award. This practice shall result in the cancellation of said award and/or return of items (as applicable) and the recommended removal of bidder from bid list(s).

3.25 BID PROTEST

Any protests or challenges to this competitive procurement shall be governed by Section 35.38 of the City's Code of Ordinances.

3.26 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Proposer shall pay all claims, losses, liens, settlements judgments of any nature whatsoever in connection with the subsequent indemnifications including, but not limited to, attorney's fees reasonable (including appellate attorney's fees) and costs.

CITY reserves the right to select its own legal counsel to conduct any defense in any such proceeding and all costs and fees associated therewith shall be the responsibility of Successful Proposer under the indemnification agreement. Nothing contained herein is intended nor shall it be construed to waive City's rights and immunities under the common law or Florida Statute 768.28 as amended from time to time.

Additional indemnification requirements may be included under Special Terms and Conditions and/or as part of a specimen contract included in the solicitation package.

General Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, Successful Proposer shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses, direct, indirect or consequential arising out of consequential arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of or in consequence of the products, goods or services furnished by or operations of the Successful Proposer or his subcontractors, agents, officers, employees or independent contractors pursuant to or in the performance of the Contract.

Patent and Copyright Indemnification:

Successful Proposer agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses arising out of any alleged infringement of copyrights, patent rights and/or the unauthorized or unlicensed use of any invention, process, material, property or other work manufactured or used in connection with the performance of the Contract, including its use by CITY.

3.27 DEFAULT PROVISION

In the case of default by the bidder or contractor, the City of Pembroke Pines may procure the articles or services from any other sources and hold the bidder or contractor responsible for any excess costs occasioned or incurred thereby.

The City shall be the sole judge of nonperformance, which shall include any failure on the part of the successful Bidder to accept the Award, to furnish required documents, and/or to fulfill any portion of the contract within the time stipulated. Upon default by the successful Bidder to meet any terms of this agreement, the City will notify the Bidder five (5) days (weekends and holidays excluded) to remedy the default. Failure on the Contractor's part to correct the default within the required five (5) days shall result in the contract being terminated and upon the City notifying in writing the Contractor of its intentions and the effective date of the termination. The following shall constitute default:

- A. Failure to perform the Work required under the contract and/or within the time required or failing to use the subcontractor, entities and personnel as identified and set forth, and to the degree specified in the contract.
- B. Failure to begin the Work under this Bid within the time specified.
- C. Failure to perform the Work with sufficient Workers and equipment or with sufficient materials to ensure timely completion.
- D. Neglecting or refusing to remove materials or perform new Work where prior Work has been rejected as non-conforming with the terms of the contract.
- E. Becoming insolvent, being declared bankrupt, or committing act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or making an assignment renders the successful Bidder incapable of performing the Work in accordance with and as required by the contract.
- F. Failure to comply with any of the terms of the contract in any material respect.

In the event of default of a contract, the successful Bidder shall pay all attorney's fees and court costs incurred in collecting any damages. The successful Bidder shall pay the City for any and all costs incurred in ensuing the completion of the project.

Additional provisions may be included in the specimen contract.

3.28 ACCEPTANCE OF MATERIAL

The material delivered under this proposal shall remain the property of the seller until a physical inspection and actual usage of this material and/or services is made and thereafter accepted to the satisfaction of the City and must comply with the terms herein, and be fully in accord with specifications and of the highest quality. In the event the material and/or services supplied to the City are found to be defective or do not conform to specifications, the City reserves the right to cancel the order upon written notice to the seller and return product to seller at the sellers expense.

3.29 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROMPT PAYMENT ACT

The City complies with Florida Statute 218.70, Florida Prompt Payment Act.

SECTION 4 - SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

4.1 PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS

This is a Standby / Pre-Event Agreement. Upon activation of this Agreement by the City, the Contractor will be required to provide Performance and Payment Bonds in the amount of \$1,000,000 or 100% of the Contract value, whichever is greater, within three (3) calendar days of a written 'Notice to Proceed' by the City. Once activated, the Payment and Performance Bonds shall be in force for a period of not less than one (1) year from the date of original execution by the Bond Surety.

Proposers must include with their proposal response, a letter from their bonding company / surety that guarantees that the proposing firm will be able to provide Performance and Payment Bonds in the amount of \$1,000,000 or 100% of the Contract value, whichever is greater, at the time of an event.

Proposers shall factor the annual cost of a Performance and Payment Bond into their administrative costs when responding to this proposal. The City will not accept a direct pass- through item for bonding."

In any event prior to commencing work, the Contractor shall execute and furnish to City a performance bond and a payment bond, each written by a corporate surety, having a resident agent in the State of Florida and having been in business with a record of successful continuous operation for at least five (5) years. The surety shall hold a current certificate of authority from the Secretary of Treasury of the United States as an acceptable surety on federal bonds in accordance with United States Department of Treasury Circular No. 570. If the amount of the Bond exceeds the underwriting limitation set forth in the circular, in order to

qualify, the net retention of the surety company shall not exceed the underwriting limitation in the circular and the excess risks be protected bγ coinsurance. must reinsurance. or other methods. accordance with Treasury Circular 297, revised September 1, 1978 (31DFR, Section 223.10, Section 223.11). Further, the surety company shall provide City with evidence satisfactory to City, that such excess risk has been protected in an acceptable manner. The surety company shall have at least the minimum qualification following accordance with the latest edition of A.M. Best's Insurance Guide, published by Alfred M. Best Company, Inc., Ambest Road, Oldwick, New Jersey 08858:

B+ to A+

Two (2) separate bonds are required and both must be approved by the City. The performance bond shall be conditioned that the Contractor performs the contract in the time and manner prescribed in the contract. The payment bond shall be conditioned that the Contractor promptly make payments to all persons who supply the Contractor with labor, materials and supplies used directly or indirectly by the Contractor in the prosecution of the work provided for in the Contract and shall provide that the surety shall pay the same in the amount not exceeding the sum provided in such bonds, together with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law; and that they shall indemnify and save harmless the City to the extent of any and all payments in connection with the carrying out of said Contract which the City may be required to make under the law.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 255.05(1)(a), Florida Statutes, it shall be the duty of the Contractor to record the aforesaid payment and performance bonds in the public records of Broward County, with the Contractor to pay all recording costs.



4.2 DAVIS-BACON & RELATED ACTS

If construction, alternation or repair of public buildings or public works project is <u>funded or assisted under one or more Federal statute</u>, the Davis-Bacon prevailing wage provisions may apply to the project if any of the applicable statutes requires payment of Davis-Bacon wage rates.

The Davis-Bacon Act requires that each contract over \$2,000 to which the United States or the District of Columbia is a party for the construction, alteration, or repair of public buildings or public works shall contain a clause setting forth the minimum wages to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics employed under the contract. Under the provisions of the Act, contractors or their subcontractors are to pay workers employed directly upon the site of the work no less than the locally prevailing wages and fringe benefits paid on projects of a similar character.

In addition to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, Congress has added prevailing wage provisions to approximately 60 statutes which assist construction projects through grants, loans, loan guarantees, and insurance. These "related Acts" involve construction in such areas as transportation, housing, air and water pollution reduction, and health. Davis-Bacon wage determinations are to be used in accordance with the provisions of Regulations, 29 CFR Part 1, Part 3, and Part 5.

4.3 MINORITY / WOMEN'S / LABOR SURPLUS FIRMS PARTICIPATION

In accordance with the requirements as stated in C.F.R. 200.321, the City encourages the active participation of minority businesses, women's business enterprises and labor surplus area firms as a part of any subsequent agreement whenever possible.

If subcontracts are to be let, through a prime contractor, that contractor is required to take the affirmative steps listed in items (1) through (5) below.

- (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources:
- (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
- (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
- (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

4.4 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LIST

In accordance with Florida Statue 287.135, as amended, principals or owners listed on the Scrutinized Companies that boycott Israel List, Scrutinized Companies with in activities Sudan List. Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or is engaged in business operations in Syria or Cuba are prohibited from submitting a bid, proposal or response to a solicitation for goods or services in an amount equal to or greater than \$1 million.

By submitting a bid, proposal or response, the company, principals or owners certify that they are not listed on the Scrutinized Companies that boycott Israel List, Scrutinized Companies with activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or is engaged in business operations in Syria or Cuba.

4.5 E-VERIFY

Contractor acknowledges that the City may be utilizing the Contractor's services for a project that is funded in whole or in part by State funds pursuant to a contract between the City and a State agency. Contractor shall be responsible for complying with the E-Verify requirements in the contract and using the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system (per the State of Florida Executive Order Number 11-02 "Verification of Employment Status") to verify the employment eligibility of: (a) all persons employed during the contract term by the Contractor to perform employment duties within Florida; and (b) all persons (including subcontractors) assigned by the Contractor to perform work pursuant to the contract, during the Agreement term. The Contractor is also responsible reporting to the City any required information to the City. Contractor acknowledges that the terms of this paragraph are material terms, the breach of any of which shall constitute a default under the Agreement.

4.6 LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractor agrees to comply, subject to applicable professional standards, with the provisions of any and all applicable Federal, State, County and City orders, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations which may pertain to the Services required under the Agreement, including but not limited to:

A. ACCESS BY THE GRANTEE, SUBGRANTEE, FEDERAL GRANTOR AGENCY AND COMPTROLLER GENERAL

The Contractor shall allow access by the grantee, sub grantee, Federal grantor agency and Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions.

B. FEDERAL CLEAN AIR AND WATER ACTS

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), and will report violations to FEMA and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS

The Contractor shall comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3702-3704) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

D. COMPLIANCE WITH THE COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

- (1) Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract.
- Subcontracts. (2)The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as the FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any

subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.

(3) Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

E. BUY AMERICAN ACT

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements regarding the Buy American Act. (42 U.S.C 5206 - ex-tended until 2023).

F. SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Non-federal entities are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, 2 CFR part 180. These regulations restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities.

- a. This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).
- b. The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- c. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition

to remedies available to the City, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

d. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

G. ANTI-LOBBYING

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended). Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related sub-contracts which exceed \$100,000 (49 CFR 20).

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or

attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

H. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). (All construction contracts awarded in excess of \$10,000 by grantees and their contractors or subgrantees).

I. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (OSHA)

As applicable to this contract.

J. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA)

As applicable to this contract.

K. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

ΑII contractors subcontractors and performing work in connection with this Contract shall provide equal opportunity for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex, national origin, sexual preference, disability or marital status. The aforesaid provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for including apprenticeship. training, Contractor agrees to post in a conspicuous place available for employees and applicants for employment, such notices as may be required by any authority having jurisdiction over the Work setting forth the provisions of the nondiscrimination law.

L. BROWARD COUNTY CODE OF ETHICS FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS

Section 1-19 of the Broward County Code, and Ordinance 2011-19.

M. FLORIDA BUILDING CODE (FBC).

As applicable to this contract.

N. VIOLATION OF LAW

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, Contractor shall not be required pursuant to the Agreement to take any action or abstain from taking any action if such action or abstention would, in the good faith determination of the Contractor, constitute a violation of any law or regulation to which Contractor is subject, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations requiring that Contractor conduct its operations in a safe and sound manner.